PManagemant Discussion & Analysis
1. introduction

FYZ1 was truly an unprecedented year, COVID-19 resulted in severe disruptions to social,
ecanornic and financial infrastructure. Loss of lives and livelihoods continued throughout the year.

The nationwide lockdown announced in the third week of Mar'20 brought businesses to a grinding
halt; supply chains were severely disrupted resulted in high job losses particularly for the self-
employed and the unorganized sector. The restrictions were gradually eased in a phased manner
from May'2020. As a result, Q1 FY21 resulted in 2 GDP contraction of 24.43% and it graduaily
recovered thereafter (Q2: -7.44%, Q3: 0.46% & Q4: 1.64%). Overall GDP contracted by 7.255% in
FY21,

The Ministry of Finance and Reserve Bank of India (RB!) announced various measures from time
to time to help the borrowers and institutions tide over the unprecedented and tumultuous time.
The moratorium an loans (Mar'20-Aug’20) announced by the RBI to all borrowers, helped rmost
borrowers to address the immediate liquidity concerns.

The Banking and NBFC sector were also impacted in the first half, on one hand, the demand for
credit plunged, and on the other hand, coflections dropped as businesses were shut and
movement of people restricted. The overall demand for credit, however, picked up towards end
of third quarter and in the fourth quarter of the year.

As the lockdowns eased and businesses began to return to normaley in Q4FY21, india
experienced a second wave of infections in the beginning of FY22. This second wave seems
more potent with increased intensity and has penetrated deeper in hinterlands of the country. Tha
impact on the economic activity and overall effect on credit quality will however need to be
monitored over the next few months.

On the positive side, COVID-19 has accelerated the process of digitalisation across every value
chain of business and has brought about newer sustainable trends and ways of conducting
business.

We remain cautious on the growth outlook for next year and will be closely monitoring the evolving
healthcare situation, pace of vaccinations, monsoons, commadity prices, and various fiscal and
manetary policy measures announced.,

2. Response To Covid-19

We took number of steps to address the chalienges posed by Covid-19, We identified four focus
areas to navigate in FY21 — Employee safety, Liquidity, Portfolio Quality and Growth.,

Consequent to country wide lockdown announced by the Indian gavernment in Mar'20, we
adopted the following measures:
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+ Safety of Qur Employees: With safety and well-being of the employees being prime, we
suspended branch and central offices locations and ensured that employees moved to “Work
from Home” arrangement in compliance with the Government's rules. We have recently
launched a drive to provide vaccination to alt our employees and the family members across
all our locations and we hope to complete this by July 15",

s Maintaining Business Continuity: Our Infarmation Technology team ensured uninterrupted
availability of core-systems, bandwidth and set-up virtual private networks for making
platforms available to multiple users. The teamn ensured all critical business functions including
Operations, Collections, Finance and Treasury continued to function seamlessly working
remotely. Our supply chain business continued to support our barrewers focusing on essential
services through the lockdown,

= Strengthened Customer focus; We took proactive measures to help our borrowers adopt to
digital channels. Qur commercial vehicle team worked with our customers and helped
criginate business for them, Various mediums of communications were initiated by us to
ensure interaction and engagement with the customers.

» Enhanced Engagement with Employees and their families: Qur senior management
ensured reguilar ‘virtual' meetings with our emplayees. Our HR team organised regular events
such as yoga sessions, counselling sessions, various training sessions, family competitions
to keep employees and their families in good spirit.

» Liquidity: We maintained higher fevels of liquidity surplus in order to ensure timely business
obligations. Our company did not seek moratorium from any of its Lenders and serviced all
debt obligations on time. The Company's capital and liquidity positions remained strong
throughout the year,

» Re-start of Branch Qperations : With relaxation of lockdown restrictions across our various
branch locations in Jun'20, we started opening branch operations in a gradual and phased
manner as per the directions of the Government, Before opening of any branch, full
sahitization was undertaken, housekeeping and security staff trained on safety protocols and
offices equipped with precaution tools.

MNEFG Sector Overview

1 Qvarview

NBFCs play a key rola in financing the needs of smalt and medium scale enterprises as well as
the economically unserved and underserved individuals. NBFCs have been able to serve specific
requirements of borrowers in the most effective and timely manner.




Capital

NBFCs’ credit to Gross Domestic Product (GDP) ratio increased from 8.6% in 2012-13 10 12.2%
in 2018-19 before moderating siightly to 11.6% in 2019-20 in the wake of the pandemic.

The consolidated balance sheet of NBFCs registered a Y-o-Y growth of 13% and 11.6% in
Q2FY21 and Q3FY21 respectively with total balance sheet size of RS 24 4 lakh cr as of Dec'20
as per RBI's bulletin dated May'21. Loans and advances constituted around 71% of the total
assets in Q3FY21 and continued to be the largest component on the asset side of NBFCs’ balance
sheet,

3.2 Govarnment and Regulatoery Initiatives

Government of India (Gol) and RBI announced several policy and other initiatives for individual
borrowers, MSME and NBFCs addressing challenges posed by the pandernic. Some of the key
measures addressing the liquidity and portfolio quality in context of Adani Capital are surmmarised
below:

» Moratorium: The RBI allowed all lending institutions to offer a 6-month moratorium to
borrowers on their loan instalments for the period Mar'20-Aug'20.

Over 9,137 borrowers out of ¢. 25,000 borrowers of Adani Capital opted for moratoriurn
for 1 to 6 emi instalments. Approximately, 13% or 1,748 borrowers under Tractor Loans,
68% or 4,802 under CV loans and 64% or 2,587 under MSME Business Loans sought
moratorium. 68% of these borrowers sought moratoriurn for upto 2 instalments (largely
April/May2020) months while only 375 borrowers sought moratorium for all 6 months.
Overall, the farm sector was least impacted during the lockdown and 86% (of the 1,74R
borrowers who sought moratorium) of the borrowers took moratorium only for one
instalment,

+ Asuset Classification: The Honourable Suprerme Court of India in a public interest
litigation vide an interim order dated September 3, 2020 directed that accounts which were
not declared as non-performing assets (NPA) till August 31, 2020 would not be declared
as NPA or standstill status till further orders. This interirn order granted stood vacated on
March 23, 2021 based on the judgerment of the Hon'ble SC.

s In August 2020, RBI allowed a one-time restructuring (OTR) of loans due to COVID-19
related stress wilhout classifying therm as NPA. 2 of borrowers (Rs. 1.46 cror (.1% of total
assets) of Adani Capital sought restructuring under above provision.

« To provide long term and shon term liquidity support to NBFCs/HFC, RB} announced
programs - Targeted Long Term Repo Operations (TLTROQ), Partial Credit Guarantee
Scheme (PCGS), Special Liquidity Scheme (SLS).

Adani Capital raised Rs. 295 cr under various programs as summarised below,
TLTRO - Rs. 50 cr through 3 year NCD issue with a public sector bank (PSB).
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PCGS — Rs. 200 cr through 18 months NCD issue with 2 PSBs.
5LS - availed Rs. 45 cr for 8 month tenor from SIDBI under the liquidity window,

4. Adani Capital Private Limited (Adani Capltal)

4.1 Overview

In sync with Adani Group's vision of "Growth with Goodness”, at Adani Capital our vision is to
support micro entrepreneurs. Our aim is to leverage technology and provide efficient, transpareant
and cost-effective solutions to our entrepreneur borrowers.

Adani Capital is a non-depasit taking systemically important NBFC registered with the RB] and
received its NBFC license in Jan 2017 and commenced operations from March 2017,

The lack of adequate and timely access to finance has been one of the biggest challenges in the
semi-urban and rural geographies in our country. Qur products specifically address the financing
requirements of Tier 2 to Tier 4 markets. We provide loans ranging from Rs. 1 lakh to Rs. 1 er for
meeting requirements of our entrepreneur borrowers. Qur products can be classified as:

+ Tractor Loans — New, Used/Refinance.

» Commercial Vehicle loans — New, Used/Refinance with a focus on small & light
commercial vehicles,

+ Business Loans- fully collateralized term loans to small and rmicro enterprises for business
purpose.

+ Supply Chain Finance - short term working capital facility to small and mediumn
enterprises.

As of Mar'21, total asset under management (AUM) was Rs. 1,282 cr with over 28,000 customers
spread across our 63 branches and 6 spoke location in 6 states; Maharashtra, Gujarat, Rajasthan,
Karnataka, UP and Tamil Nadu.
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4.2 Asset Portfolio Mix

Tractor Loans Product Mix Geography Mix
We follow a model-wise location specific
dynarmic: business/product mix based on
the historical performance and real time
on-ground  feedback. Our sourcing
philosophy emphasizes seif-sourcing,
existing customer references and lays
weightage to borrower experience, land
holding, repayment track record. Overall,
we have maintained halance in our product mix.

We increased our focus on Rajasthan and Kamataka, with almost 80% of the incremental
business between the 2 states in second HY21. The portfolio collections performance of the 2
states has also been good,

Overalt this portfolio was relatively less impacted on account of lackdown restrictions and the
coliection efficiency bounced back to 85%+ in Q4.

Commercial Vehicle Loans
Our focus is largely on small and light commercial vehicle which provide last mile connectivity,

The horrower profile is mainly constituted by individual owner-drivers and we have very few fleet
customers. Average ticket size of our portfolio is c. Rs. 4.2 lakh.
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We have maintained equal contribution from new and used/refinance and equal balance across
4 states. Portfolio quality and performance in FY21 was befter than our peers on account of focus
retail borrowers in tier 2 to tier 4 locations, minimized exposure in funding of Specialized Vehicle,
M&HCYV and passenger vehicles.




Business Loans

In Yine with our aim to suppon entrepreneurs, we provide fully collateralized small business loan
to small and micro enterprise to help them grow their business - extension of shap, working capital
requirement, buying of new equipment. The average ticket size under this vertical is Rs. 10.5 lakh
and over 27% of the loans are to Grocery and Medical stores, part of essential setvices value

chain.

in FY'21, we expanded our sales footprint in Rajasthan in the year and Rajasthan comprises our

biggest state in the segment,

Geography Mix

.'ﬁéjasthan -
56%

Product Mix In Dec'19, we acquired business loan

portfolio of Rs. 143 cr (Rs. 119 ¢r as
on March 31, 2021} from Essel
Finance . This portfolio is largely metro
centric (MMR, NCR, Pune account for
»75%), that experienced higher
impact of lockdown restrictions and
accordingly has taken time to
regularise repayment.

*diseaitinued product

Supply Chain Finance - Dealer Finance and Vendor Finance

Pertfolio (Rs, Cr)
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« Dealer Finance Vendor Finance

Cwur supply chain finance is an anchar driven program
where ihe anchor involvement/commitment is high
and ongoing. We provide short term finance to
address working capital requirement of small and
medium enterprises through our fully digitat platform
for end to end customer engagement

We have onboarded 23 Anchors (2 Adani Group and

21 non-Group Anchors} and have over 300 active MSME borrowers and in FY21 gross
disbursements aggregated over Rs. 1,039 cr at yiald of 14%. After over 4 years of operations, we
reported our first NPA (Rs. 27 lakhs) largely due to Covid related impact on the borrower's

business.
i, Business Heview
5.1 Performance Highlights

AUM

AUM grew ¢.26% YoY from Rs. 1,025 cr as of Mar'20 to Rs. 1,292 cr (of which on-book loan
assets is Rs. 1,183 cr) comprising of tractor loan (28%), CV loan (18%), MGME term loan (32%),




Supply chain financing (19%) and ofhers (3%). We completed our maiden direct assignment
transactions of Rs. 107 cr with 2 banks,

Total Income
Total income increased 47% YoY from Rs. 129 cr as on 31.03.2020 to Rs. 180 ¢r as on
31.03,2021 on acocunt of increase in total assets of the company

Profitability
Net profit has increased from Rs, 1.8 Crin FY20 to Rs, 16.2 Crin FY 21,

Capital Adequacy
The company has maintained strong capital adequacy levels over the years, CRAR of 25.81% as
of Mar'21 is well above the RBI benchmark.

Leverage
Company is well capitalized and conservatively leveraged NBFCs with Net worth of RS, 350 Cr
and D/E ratio of 2,80 times as of Mar'21.

Movermnent of NPA

Adani Capital follows a 90-days past due definition (90 DPD) for NPA (default} classification since
inception and has a prudent provisioning policy in accordance with the RBI prudential norms for
NBFCs. Qur company made ECL provisions of Re 2.8 Crin FYZ21 towards loans/other assets with
cumulative £CL. provision of Rs, 17.7 cr or 1.5% of total assets as of Mar'21.

Stagewise Pr

 Stage 1 (0 - 30 dpd) 10075 © 928% , T8 . 0%
_Stage 2 (31-90dpd) 891 58% 1.7 2.4%
Stage 3 (90+ dpd) 163 138% - 83  °  505%
Total Loans and Advances  1,182.8  100% 17.7 1.5%

The Gross NPA and Net NPA were 1.38% and 0.74% as of March 31, 2021 as detailed below,

Tractor Loans 331 28% 23 2.8 0.85%

CV Loans 217 18% 4.2 3.0 1.39%
MSME Term Loans 254 22% 10.5 2.5 0.98%
MSME Term Loans ~ Essel 120 10% 18.7 77 6.43%
Supply Chain Finance 231 18% 11.8 0.3 0.13%
Cther Loans a0 3% - - "

Total- Adani Capital 4,183 16.3 1.38%

ATS- Average Ticket Size




¥ %?}i

Key Financial Parameters

AlM 1,292 1,025 536
§ = Loan Assets (gross) 1,183 1,025 536
4 u Net Worth 350.2 3303 328.5
= @ Borrowings 980.1 847.7 230.7
Deposits/Investments 143.2 144.3 10.9
Interest income* 188.8 128.8 69.2
{-) Interest Expense 85,1 47.9 11.0
:=: Net Interest Income {NI) 104.8 80.9 5£8.2
E {+) Non Interest Income 07 0.8 0.0
E (-)Operating Expenses 77.0 70.4 478
ﬂ Pre-Provision Operating Profit - PPOP 28.5 11,2 10.4
E (-} Depreciation & Provisions B.5 g7 77
% Frofit Before Tax 20.0 1.2 27
(<) Taxes 38 0.7 -0.6
Profit After Tax 16.2 1.8 33
CRAR 25.7% 27.8% 53.3%
Net Debt/Equity Ratio 2.8 2.6 07
8 Gross NPA % 1.4% 0.5% 0.01%
= Net NPA 0.7% 0.3% 0.0%
é Net interest Income (NIM) tnel pn 9.5% 10.6% 15.2%
E Costincome Ratio 73% 86% 82%
Return on Assets (RoA) 1.5% 0.2% 0.9%
Return on Equity (RoE}) 4.8% 0.6% 1.1%
Lo - “
:':J Customer accounts 28,195 19,732 5,544
%’ Number of Branches 63 60 L)
Employee Strength 738 790 579

*Revenue from operation

5.2 ALM and Liahility Management

As our focus is on financing needs of micro and small enterprise, majority of our portfolio qualifies
as 'Priority Sector’. This in turn helps in availment of new credit facilities from banks as they prefer
lending to NBFCs/HFCs where end use of loan qualifies as a priority sector .




In H1FY21, Adani Capital maintained significantly higher levels of tiquidity compared to the
previous year and the excess liguidity was gradually utilized for loan disbursement in second half.
The maintenance of higher liquidity buffers entailed a negative carry but was necessary as a

prudent strategy given the overall uncertainties on account of the disruptions caused by
pandemic.

Key Borrowing Highlight
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We have total Bank limits of Rs. 1,476 cr as of Mar'21 from lenders like SBI, PNB, Indian,
Canara, PSB, Union Bank, Central Bank, Bank of India, SCB, DBS, ICICI, Axis, IDFC
First, Yes Bank, Karnataka Bank, Federal Bank, NABKISAN, HDFC.

Cost of Funds

Closing Barrowng (Rs. o) & COF (%) )
QOur overall cost of funds continued to

— pay1O5W improve in the year largely on account of
10,26% ?Ba‘f 8% gur efforts to negotiate lower borrowing
f o costs from new lenders and repricing of
9.43% e i 8% outstanding MCLR-linked borrowings.
é“é pezk: 183 ?03? E{T?F‘.‘?‘f" B.o% This year the overafl cost of funds
- . R U man improved by over 143 bps to 8.83% in
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Liquidity Measures announced RBI TLTRO & PCGS

Under various liquidity pragram announced by the regulator, Adani Capital raised Rs. 295
er; TLTRO 2.0 - Rs. 50 cr through 3 year NCD issue with a public sector bank (PSB).
PCGS — Rs. 200 cr through 18 months NCD issue with 2 PSBs. Special Liquidity Scheme
- availed Rs. 45 cr for 8 month tenor from S10B under the liquidity window.

Direct Assignment
We successfully concluded the maiden direct assignment transactions of Rs. 124 cr with
2 investors.

« Tractor Pool - Rs. 77 cr with Frivate Sector Bank

«  CV Pool - Rs. 47 cr with Puplic Sector Bank
The Bank conducted deatailed diligence of our underwriting policies and various business
processes. This transaction underlines our portfolio quality, robust policy framework
compliant with bank’s internal policy framewark,

Licyuidity

In order to manage the uncertainty posed by the lockdown measures, we maintained
higher levels of liquidity buffer in order to ensure timely meeting business obligations, The
Liquidity buffer in form of investments and un-utilized bank lines was approximately Rs,
681 cr as of 31st Mar 21.

o K-}K\&f{ |




s Moaoratorium

Moratorium was not availed from any of our lenders and all loans were serviced as per

schedule.

« Asset Liability Management

In inception, we have maintained a matched ALM structure with all borrowings in the 3-5
yaars tenor. There is no ALM mismatch; we have positive cumulative mismatch across all

buckets up to one year

5.3 Dishursements
Gross Disbursements (Rs, ¢r)
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& Risk Management

6.1 Risk Management Framework

The business gradually picked up from second
quarter as lockdown restrictions were relaxed and
reached pre-Covid levels in Q3. During the year,
Adani Capital disbursed loans aggregating Rs. 460
cr (branch business). The foundation necessary for
a stronger growth in FY22 has been put in place -
expansion of sales footprint and collection and legal
team. These efforts are expected to fructify in
supporting higher growth going forward.

Our Risk management framework has 4 pillars as below:

«  Dynamic credit risk policy
*  Undenwriting standards

- Risk Analytics

«  Collections management

Dynamic Credit Risk policy

Adani capital manages the credit risk through a balanced, structured credit policy framework -
well-defined selection criteria, boundary conditions and deviations. Risk based approvat authority
is delagated by our Board of Directors and the Risk Management Committee and our risk
governance framework ensures adhersnce to the approval matrix. The credit policy is very
dynamic in nature and reviewed and calibrated reqularly, based on the micro and macro industry

changes.




Underwriting standards

The fundamentals of the underwriting regarding the credit, capacity, collateral and capital is
ascertained through a weli-trained team with adequate experisnce in respective product and
geography. Most of the verifications - KYC, bank statements, Income Tax returns, property
verifications, vehicle registration details are done digitally and part of the ever-evolving digital
underwriting journey. The team is regularly trained on policy and overall risk management.

Risk Analytics

We have a comprahensive portfolio monitoring mechanism. Our Risk Analytics team uses historic
and incoming information to extrapolate trends which presents opportunities to better identify,
measure and mitigate risk. The team integrates multiple sources of data which includes internal
~transactional and behavioural data, external data - credit bureau and market information. A well-
tuned early warning system helps us identify and take preventive measures to arrest any
deterioration of the portfolio. The Risk analytics team provides valuable feedback for Credit policy
configuration,

Collection management

With a strong emphasis on debtor management, we have a well-defined organization structure
and SOPs for ovetdue accounts. We leverage technology for digital collection (multiple channels
- NACH, e-Mach, UPI) and call center support for regular pre-presentation reminders, overdue
follow-ups. Our rule-based collection management system provides a 360-degree visibility of
custorners to our field team.

5.2 nternal Audit and Control

Adani Capital has an adequate system of internal controf in place which has been designed to
provide & reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring
of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and
for ensuring reliability of financial reporting.

Adani Capital has robust intarnal audit program, where the Group level internal guditors conduct
a risk-based audit with a view to not only test adherence to laid down policies and procedures but
also to suggest improvements in processes and systems.
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7 HMumszan Resource

Adani Capital had 738 employees as at March 31, Organisation Structure
2021 with sales function comprising 70% of the
employee  strength, Our 1{sam comprises
experienced and self-motivated professionals,
committed fo creating a distinctive financial
services business with customer ownership and
complete life cycle focus, Aligning with our Evecutiva Senior level
business strategy, we have designed a lean 73% Mana:z%zment
organization structure. We believe in employee

development and growth and around 70% of the

managerial opportunities are met internally.

Hurnan Capital is our most important asset and regular learning, trainings, professional growth
opportunities and recognitions are central in our human resources framework.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the health, safety and wellbeing of employees and their families
was of prima concern. We undertook several engagements to assist employees deal with the
sudden and unprecedented changes brought about during this period. Measures addressing
health insurance costs, managing stress, vaccination were underiaken.

In FY21, we had experienced unprecedented changes in tha way we conducted business and
entailed rapid adaptation to the new norm. During this period, we continued to deploy robust
learning programs through virtual training sessions and digital learning to ensure continuous
development of our ermnployees. Continuous learning is our mantra. Training program covered
lending Operations, Documentation, KYC & AML Policy, IT System & Security, FOSH and
Accounts among others., Several leadership development programs were conducted in
collaboration with well-known Partners.

Tha advanced learning management system {Fercipio) & intraduction of the learning modules to
promote anytime, anywhere learning helped us deploy appropriate user-friendly modules.
Dedicated digital learning campaigns have resulted in enhanced learnar Engagement and a
higher e-learning coverage.

Frash recruitments for planned staffing were commenced in second half of the year and has been
completed as planned. Our Management team has been strengthened with ali senior leadership
in place.

Key HR Initiatives
Unnati: We have faunched ‘Unnati’ platform which is an in-house career progression program for

our branch level employees whare assessment of employee skills is carried out and feedback is
being provided by senior management.




Anubhav: We have launched ‘Anubhay’ platform for internal as well as external speakers who
interact with our employees and inspire therm by sharing their journey of achievemants and
challenges.

Covi-19 Vaccination: Keeping the safety and health of our employee as our top priority, we have
started Covid-19 vaccination program for all our employees and fheir farily members.

With a strong HR framework and system, high level of commitment and loyalty from employees,
Adani Capital has a strong foundation to grow manifold in the coming years and is confident face
the chalienges and emerging as a stable organization.

8 Outiook of the Company

Adani Capital's aim is to suppor small and micro entrepreneurs (farmers, transporters and small
business owners) by offering customized financing solutions leveraging technology. Adani
Capital's strategy to increase its presence is as below:

* End to end digital process right frormn onboarding to sanction to disburserment using tele
verification, rule engine for bureau scorefunderwriting, quick valuation of security

+ Reduce cost of custormer acquisition through strategic tailored partnerships and alliances
and direct lead generation

+ Leverage technology to improve the quality of underwriting and TAT

» Review & benchmark performance at a business executive, branch and segment levei to
increase productivity

» Focus on people, process, productivity and profitability

In FY22, we propose to expand our sale footprint in existing states through spoke operations. Wa
propose to measured expansion in states of Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Madhya Pradesh
in HZFY22. We aim to he the “most economical and convenient lender” for our borrower
entreprenaurs.

g Cautionary Statement

Statements made in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may be "Forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual resuits could differ from those expressed or
implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include
economic conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in the domestic & overseas
markets in which the Company operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws & ather
statutes and other incidental factors.




Board's Report

To,
The Members
Adani Capital Private Limited

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Annual Report of your Company along
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Summary of Financial Resuits for the year ended 315t March, 2021 is as under:
(Amount Rs. In Million)

For the year For the year
Sr. Particulars ended ended
No. 31st March, 31st-March,
2021 2020
1 Gross Income 1907.08 1290.16
2 Finance Cost 850.91 479.77
3 Impairment on Financial Instrument 27.66 43,02
4 Empioyee Benefit Expenses 535,42 543,98
5 Other Expenses 291.86 203,93
6 Net Profit Before Tax 201.23 19.46
7 Provision for Taxation 38.46 7.21
8 Net Profit After Tax 162.77 12.25
9 Total Comprehensive Income 162.53 18.07
Transfer to Statutory reserve created
10 u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 3255 2.45
DIVIDEND

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of
Profits to meet future business requirements of the Company.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The information on overall industry structure, economic developments,
performance and state of affairs of the Company, risk management systems,
impact of COVID-19 on housing finance sector and operations of the Company is
given in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report forming part of Annual
Report of the Company.

Corporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +9122 62411200

1004/5, 10" Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650 T
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpi@adani.com A
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.com
Maharashtra, India . :
CIN: U65990GJ2016PTC093692 e

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year under review, your Company earned the gross income of
Rs.1907.08 mn as against Rs. 1290.16 mn in the previous year. The total
expenditure during the year under review was Rs. 1705.85 mn as against Rs.
1270.70 mn in the previous year. The Total Comprehensive Income was Rs. 162.53
mn as against Rs. 18.07 mn in the previous year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised Share Capital

The Authorised share capital of the company for the year ended 315t March, 2021
is Rs. 200/- mn (Rupees Twenty Crores) divided into 20/- mn (Two Crores) Equity
Shares of Re. 10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital

The Paid share capital of the company for the year ended 315t March, 2021 is Rs.
172.99 mn divided into 17.29mn Equity Shares of Re, 10/- each.

OUTSTANDING LOAN

During the financial year 2020- 2021, the Company’'s outstanding loan book
amount is Rs. 11,829.27 mn.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company’s borrowings enjoy the following Credit Ratings:

. Rating / Outlook
Nature of borrowing CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans ) CRISIL A1+
Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/Stable
Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+
Short term Non - Convertible Debentures CRISIL A1+ (Withdrawn in
May -21)
Long term Non-Convertible Debentures CRISIL AA-
DEBENTURES
Corporate office:
Adani Capital Private Limited Tel 912262411200
1004/5, 10 Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpl@adani.com
Bandra (East). Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.com

Maharashtra, India
CIN: U65990GJ2016PTC0O93692

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India
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During the year under review, the Company has raised Rs. 2,500 /- mn through Non-
Convertible Debentures ("“NCDs") on a private placement basis. As on March 31,
2021, the outstanding NCDs stood at Rs. 2,500 /- mn.

Credit Rating assigned to the NCDs is mentioned above. During the financial year
under review, interest on Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement
basis was not due and there were no instances of interest amount not claimed by
the investors or not paid by the Company.

Your Company being NBFC, is exempted from the requirement of creating
Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) on privately placed debentures. Therefore,
no DRR has been created for the Debentures issued by your Company on private
placement basis.

Disclosure under Master Directions issued by RBI for Non-Convertible Debentures:

« The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been
claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which
the Non-Convertible Debentures became due for redemption: Rs. Nil

« The total amount in respect of such Debentures remaining unclaimed or
unpaid beyond the date of such Debentures become due for redemption: Rs.
Nil

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The details of the Debenture trustees of the Company are as under:
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited

The IL&FS Financial Center

Plot No. C-22, G Block, 7th Floor

Bandra Kurla Compiex

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

Tel: +91 22 2659 3535

Fax :+9122 2653 3297

Email: mumbai@vistra.com
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LOANS FROM BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has availed Term Loans facilities of Rs.
3,950 /- mn from various banks / Financial Institutions. As on March 31, 2021, the
outstanding loans stood at 7,284.05 mn.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any public deposits
within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruies made there under as well
as not accepted any public deposit within the meaning of the RBI Direction, as the
Company is registered as NBFC Company not accepting Public Deposits.

NON- PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

Your company adhered to the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as
amended from time to time. The Company has created provisions for contingencies
on Standard Assets in accordance with the RB! Directions.

The amount of Gross Non- Performing Assets (NPAs) as at March 31, 2021 are Rs.
163.20 mn, which is equivalent to 1.38 % of the loan portfolio of the Company, as
against Rs. 45.83 mn i.e. 0.45%% of the portfolio as at March 31, 2020. The Net
NPA as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 80.75 mn i.e. 0.69% % of the loan portfolio as
against Rs. 27.17 mn i.e. 0.27 % of the portfolio as at March 31, 2020.The total
cumulative provisions towards loan and other assets as at March 31, 2021 is Rs.
176.63 mn as against 148.96 mn in the previous year.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases involving multiple lending from different
banks / NBFCs, the Government of india has set up the Central Registry of
Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of india (CERSAI) under
section 20 of the SARFAES! Act 2002 to have a central database of all mortgages
created by lending institutions. The object of this registry is to compile and
maintain data relating to all transactions secured by mortgages. Accordingly, your
Company is duly registered with CERSAI.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The risk strategy laid down by your Company helps foster a disciplined culture of
risk management and control. In conjunction with these practices, your Company
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intends to optimise its capital needs through growth, by achieving highest returns
on capital employed while managing risks appropriately.

Your Company continuously monitors loan portfolio. Portfolio level delinquency
metrics are tracked at regular intervals with focus on detection of early warning
signals of stress. These limits are periodically reviewed based on changes in the
macro-economic environment, regulatory environment and industry dynamics.
Existing credit exposure in the portfolio is continuously monitored and reviewed.
Key sectors are analysed in detail to suggest strategies, considering both risks and
opportunities. Corrective action, if required, is taken well in advance.

PRUDENTIAL NORMS FOR NON BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) regulates the NBFCs and issues guidelines on income
recognition, asset classifications, provisioning, provisioning for bad and doubtful
debts, capital adequacy, accounting and disclosure policies, fair practice code and
asset liability management., The Company is in compliance with applicable
regulatory norms and guidelines.

Your Company’'s Board has approved Know Your Customer & Anti Money
Laundering Policy (KYC & AML Policy) and adheres to the said Policy.

Your Company has in place a Fair Practices Code (FPC), which includes guidelines
on appropriate staff conduct when dealing with the customers and on the
organisation’s policies vis-a-vis client protection.

The Reserve Bank of India Act, empowers RB! to levy a penalty on NBFCs for
contravention of the Act or any of its provisions. Your Company has complied with
the said provisions and accordingly RBl has not levied any penalty on your Company
during the year.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR)
As required under the RBI Directions, your Company is presently required to
maintain a minimum capital adequacy of 15%.

The capital adequacy ratio as at 315t March, 2021 was 25.76%. Tier | and Tier 1I
capital adequacy ratios as at 31st March, 2021 were at 25.03 % and 0.73 %
respectively.
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SPECIAL RESERVE (STATUTORY RESERVE CREATED U/S 45-IC OF RBI ACT)

During the reporting financial year, your company has transferred the amount of
32.55 mnin Special Reserve, as per the requirement of the section 45-IC of RBI Act.
The closing Balance of the said reserve as on 31%t March, 2021 is 51.91 mn

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has no subsidiary company. However, the Company is a subsidiary of
Adani Finserve Private Limited.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The composition of the Board of the company is as follows: -

e Mr. Sagar Adani - Director

o Mr. R, M Malla - Independent Director

e Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO

e *Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran - Independent Women Director

* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran is appointed as an Additional Director (Independent
Category) w.e.f. 07th April, 2021

Your Company being Private Limited Company, none of the Directors are required
to retire by rotation.

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent Director under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

KeEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Following officer is the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the Requirement
of the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. *Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO
2. #Mr. Viral Shah - Chief Financial Officer
3. Mr. Bhavik Shah - Company Secretary.
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*Mr. Gaurav Gupta has appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company wef.
315t March 2021,

# Mr. Viral Shah appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company wef. 09" March
2021,

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

As your Company is neither a Listed Company nor a public company having a paid
up capital of Rs. 25 crores or more, the statement indicating the manner in which
formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and
that of its committees and individual directors is not applicable.

POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Company has in place policy against the sexual harassment and the said policy
seeks to protect women employees from sexual harassment at the place of work.
The primary objective of the same is to safeguard the interest of female employees
in the Company and also provides for punishment in case of false and malicious
representations. The policy has been communicated to the employees.

During the year, no complaint has been received by the Sexual Harassment
Committee,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Since the Company is 3 Non-Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding
particulars of loans given, guarantees given and security provided in the ordinary
course of business is exempted under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the Act.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the period under review 14 Board Meetings were held on 08/06/2020,
28/06/2020, 15/07/2020, 25/08/2020, 30/09/2020, 03/10/2020, 28/10/2020,
12/11/2020, 28/12/2020, 28/01/2021, 24/02/2021, 09/03/2021, 19/03/2021 and
26/03/2021.

Mr. Gaurav Gupta have chaired the above mentioned Board meetings.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
the Board hereby submit its responsibility Statement:—

3) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2021,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial
controls were adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable faws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements as designed
and implemented by the Company are adequate. The Internal Financial Control
procedure adopted by the Company are adequate for safeguarding its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
During the year under review, the Internal Financial Controls were operating
effectively and no material or serious observation has been received from the
Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controis.
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AUDITORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company had appointed the Statutory Auditors, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP,
Chartered Accountants for a period of five years at its first Annual General Meeting,
subject to ratification of appointment by members in every subsequent Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

However, the said requirement is dispensed with according to related provision of
Companies Amendment Act, 2017 becoming effective and accordingly, the
appointment of Auditors is not to be ratified by the members in the General
Meeting.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 does not contain any qualification and is self-
explanatory, hence does not call for any comment of Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules
2014 read with Section 177(9) of the Act (as amended from time to time), the
Company has framed Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy ("Policy”) to enable
directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances, significant
deviations from key management policies and reports any non-compliance and
wrong practices, e.g., unethical behavior, fraud, viclation of law, inappropriate
behavior / conduct, etc.

The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee / Board
from time to time. None of the Directors or employees have been denied access to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

The objective of this mechanism is to maintain a redressal system which can
process all complaints concerning questionable accounting practices, internal
controls, or fraudulent reporting of financial information.

The Policy framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the
Act and same is available on the website of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company recognizes the responsibilities towards society and strongly intends
to contribute towards development of knowiedge based economy. Since, the
average net profit of the company during the last three immediately preceding
financial years was negative, the Company has not spent any amount on CSR
activities during the year under review. In accordance with the requirements of the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of the following Members:

* Mr. Sagar Adani- Director
*  Mr. Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEO
+  Mr R M Malla - independent Director

The Company has also formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which is
available on the website of the Company (https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads).

During the year, the Company was not required to spend on CSR and hence the
Annual Report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time) is not applicable.

Terms of reférence of the CSR Committee: -

3) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company
as specified in Schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
referred to in clause (a)

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time
to time.

d) Update the Board on the implementation of various programmes and
initiatives.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

*+ Mr. Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEO
* Mr. R M Malla - Independent Director
* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran- Independent Women Director

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee: -

(3) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors of the Company;

(b) review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

(c) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

(d) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company
with related parties;

(e) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(f) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

(g) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(h) Any other function as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2013, RBI guidelines or any other regulatory authorities from
time to time.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members;

* Mr. Sagar Adani- Director
* Mr. R M Malla - independent Director
*« Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran- independent Women Director

Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: -

(a) Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of an Individual who may be appointed as a Director or Key
Managerial Personnel or in senior management level of the Company;

(b) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down
and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal;

(c) Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by
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the Committee or by an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance;

(d) Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The policy shall
be referred as Nomination and Remuneration policy.

(e) To ensure 'fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing directors.

(f) To formulate, implement and administer Employee Stock Option Scheme(s)
of the Company and grant stock options to the eligible employees.

(g) Any other function as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2013, RBI or any other regulatory authorities from time to
time,

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE

The company pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013
has formulated and adopted a Nomination & Remuneration Policy which is hosted
on our website.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, your Company has appointed M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Anmedabad,
Company Secretaries in whole-time practice to carry out the Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the year under consideration i.e. FY 2020-21.

M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Ahmedabad, Company Secretaries in whole-time
practice in their report on the secretarial audit of your Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 have not mentioned any qualifications, reservations,
adverse remarks or disclaimers. Since the Company has ensured compliance of all
applicable statutory provisions. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as
Annexure A,
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DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143
(12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GEOVERNMENT

There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under
other than those which are reportable to the Central Government.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

Members of the Company has approved Employee Stock Option scheme for
attracting, retaining and rewarding Employees of the Company. Board of the
Company has granted the options to the eligible employees of the Company, as
detailed hereunder:-

Sr. No. | Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme
L Options granted Refer to the Note No. 52 of the Financial
Il. | The Pricing formula Statements

1. Options vested

V. Options exercised

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and none of the
transactions with the related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has
formulated the Related Party Transaction Policy which is also available on the
Company's website (https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads).

The Directors draw attention of the Members to Note No. 46 to the Financial
Statements which sets out related party disclosures.

During the year under review, there were no material contracts or arrangements or
transactions entered into by the Company with related parties. Form AOC-2 is
enciosed as Annexure B to this report.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The details of individuals / employees whose remuneration falls within the purview
of the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 as amended from time to time is attached herewith as Annexure C to this
Report.

ANNUAL RETURN v

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.adanicapital.in. The extract of Annual Return is also furnished in
‘Annexure D’ - and is attached to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human Resource Development is considered important for effective
implementation of business plans. Constant endeavours are being made to offer
professional growth opportunities and recognitions, apart from imparting training
to employees. During the reporting year, in-house training programmes were
provided to employees, inter alia, in lending Operations, Documentation, KYC & ALM
Policy, IT System & Security, and Accounts etc. Your Company total headcount
stands at 738 employees.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statements relate on the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations
in future. ‘
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Since your Company is not @ manufacturing Company, the information pertaining
to Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption as stipulated under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules made thereunder
is not applicable to the Company.

Please refer to the Note No. 53.28 of the Financial Statements for Foreign Exchange

Inflows and Outflows.
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- #
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Adani Capital Private Limited
Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Adani Capital Private Limited
(hereinafter called the Company).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit by using appropriate Information technology tools like virtual data sharing
by way of data room and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The physical Inspection or
Verification of documents and records were taken to the extent possible:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2021
according to the provisions of:

(). The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

().  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(ii).  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv). Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; e :




{vi).

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
andExchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;Not
Applicable to the company during the Audit period

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009:-Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period; and

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998:-Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period.

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015:-

Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs, as
identified by the management, that is to say:

Reserve Bank of India, 1934

Prevention of Money-Laundering Act,2002.

Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

d.

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of india;

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s):-
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned‘ﬁ@@i?ge;.‘




We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that,there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year Company has passed following special resolutions;

1. Issuance 500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non - Convertible Debentures
having the face value of INR 10,00,000/- (the “Debentures”) through private
placement by the Company

2. lssuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) Through Private Placement by the
company

3. Enabling Resolution for Conversion of Outstanding Debt Into Equity Share Capital of
the Company

4, Appointment of Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Place: Ahmedabad CS Raimeen Maradiya
Date: 18.06.2021 Partner
Chirag Shah and Associates

ACS No. 43050

CP No.: 17554

UDIN: A043050C000483171

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.



‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members

Adani Capital Private Limited
Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards
and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer
5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

f“”g“ O
N X

Place: Ahmedabad CS Raimeen Maradiy
Date: 18.6.2021 Partner
Chirag Shah and Associates

ACS No. 43050

CP No.: 17554
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Form No. AQC - 2

AMMNEXURE- B

{Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule B (2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014}
1, Details of contracks or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

NOT APPLICABLE

2. Detaits of material* contracts or arfangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Sr. | Name(s} of the related | Nature of | Buration of | Salient terms af the | Date{s) of | Amount
Mo | party and nature of | contractsfarrang | the contracts f | contracts or | approvat by | paid as
. relationship ements/transacti | arrangements/ | arrangemenks or | the Board, if | advances, if
ons transactions transactions  including { any: any:
the value, if any:
1. Adani Properties Pvt IEd Rent agreement One Year As per the rent 03-10-2020 ML
agreement

Date:- 18" June, 2021

Jaraosate office:

Adani Capitai Private Limited

1005, 105 Floor. $-Wihg, One 810
£-66. G- Blogk, Sangra Kurle Complex,
Bandra (East), Rusmbai 400 057
Nagharashira, india

CIk: YB5990G 2062 TCOR3ESE

Tel +51 22 £247 1260
Fawx +51 22 2520880
cntact acpl@acani.com

e atdans o

Registereg Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Soviety. Navrangpurs, Akmedabad 320 009 Gujzrat. lndiz

Far and on behalf of the Beard

M, W wfw
- s
M e3TraY Gupta

Managing Director£ CED

DIN- 01669109



Capitai

ANNEXURE -C

ANNEXURE TC THE CIRECTCORS' REPORT

Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)
of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 of Adani Finserve Private Limited for Financial Year 2020-21

A. Top Ten Employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn

Name Age | Designat Gross Qualificat | Experienc
{(Year oA remuner ian [
5) atlons (Years)

{in Rs.)

Date of
Joining

Previous
employman
t

Mature of
aemployment
. whether
contractual
or otherwlise

whether
any  such
employee
is a relative
af any
director or
manager of
the
company
and If so,
name of
such
director ar
manager:

B. Personnel who are in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs. 102
tacs per annum and employed thraughout the year.

Name Age | Designat Gross Qualificat | Expecienc
(Year bon remuner ion
5) ations

{in Rs.}

e
{Years)

Date of
Joining

Previous
emplaymen
t

Nature of
empleyment
, whether
contractual
ar otherwise

whather
any  suth
employes
is a relative
of any
director ar
manager of
the
company
and if so,
name of
such
director or
manager:

C. Employed for a part of the financial year and were in receipt of remuneration
for any part of the financial vear at a rate which in aggregate was not less

than Rs, 8.50 lacs per month,

corporate offige:

Adani Capitat Private Limited

1004/5 70" Floor, C-Wing. One BT
C-66, G Block, Bandra Kurla Comples,
Banara (East), Mumbai 400 051
MaPrarasntra, nidia

CIN: LBS990GI2016PTCO3657

Tel »91 22 62413200
Fax #9122 ZH520650
concactacpi@adant.cam
WAL B AN Com

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimatl Society, Navrangpura, Abmedabad 380 D09, Guaral, india




Name Age

{Year
s}

Designat
ton

Gross
femuner
ations
{in Rs.)

Qualificat | Experienc
ton e
{Years)

Date of
Joining

Pravious
employmen
4

Nature of
employment
. whether
contractual
or otharwise

whether
any  such
employee
is a relative
of any
director or
tnanager of
the
tompany
and If so,
name of
such
diractor or
Mandger;

Notes: (1)

@

Corporate office:

Remuneration above includes Salary, Contribution te Provident and other funds and
pther perquisites.
No individual employee is holding equivalent to or more thar 2% of the outstanding
shares of the Company as an 3tst Mareh, 2021

Adani Gapital Privare Limitad

00475 700 Floar, C-wWing, One BRE
C-06, G- Block, Sandrs Kurla Complex,

fandra (Fast), Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

I LE5Ra0G12018PTC09 3692

Taj v971 28 62411200
Fae o9l 22 26520650
contact acpl@adan com
wiww.adany, com

Ragisiered Office: Adani Housa, 56, Shrimall Society, Naviangpus, ARmedatad 380 009, Gujsral [nga




ANNEXURE-D
ANNEXURE A TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Form Nog, MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as an the financial year ended 31* March, 2D21
[Pursuant te Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Gompanies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L Registration and other detaiis:

"CIN : | U65990GJ2016PTC093692
Registration Date 1| 121 September, 2016
Name of the Company . | Adani Capital Private Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company : | Company limited by shares

Address of the Registered office and contact Adani HMouse, 58, Shrimali Society,
details Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009,
Gujarat, india

Phone No.: 022 62411200

Whether listed company i | No

Name, Address and Contact details of i 1] NA
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Il.  Principal business activities of the Company:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the tetal turnover of the company shall be stated:

Name and description of main Products / NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
Services Product/ service the company
Gther financiat service activities, except Insura 64950 100%
pension funding activities

Corparate affine;

Adani Capital Private Limited Ter #8122 62411200
1004/%, 10 Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
-G8, - Blogk, Bandea Kurka Commpiex, conLact.sepiEadani.com
flandra (Faac)k Mumbar 400 OB1 W, At am Cam

maharashtra, India
Cine B 59906 IR0NERPTEO35092

Rogiaiered OFfice; Adani Mouse, 56, Shrimali Socisty, Mavisngpura, Ahmedabad 380 GO%, Gujarat, indid



=l

I, Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies;

Name and address of the CIN/GLN Hoiding/ % af Applicable
Company Subsidiary/ shares Section
Associate held
Adani Einserve Pvt, Litd, U&589FGJ2016PTCOBES24 Halding 100% 2(46)
' Company
Adani House, Nr Mithakhali
Six Roads, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad 380 009
Adani Ventures LLP AAI-9429 intermediate 90% 2(46)
201,Shikhar Complex, Srimati Holding
Soc, Navrangpura Ahmedabad entity
Bhrmedabad-380009 .
Adani Properties Pvt. Ltd. U452016GJ1995PTC026067 Ultimate 0% 2(46)
Holding
Shikhar, Near Adani House, Company
Mithakhalt Six Roads,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-
380009

W. Share holding pattern {(equity share capitat breakup as percentage of total equity as an 31% March, 2021

i) Category-wise Share Holding:

Catugory of Nao of Shares held at the at the beginning of the No. 6F Shares held at the end of the year "
Shareholders yaar Change
Dot Physical Totat % of Demak Physieal Tatal % of during
total katal | the year
Sharas Shares
A, | Promober
1 ndion et | e
a) | individuals/HUF
b) | Centraf
Gavernmeng
&) | State Goversrment
a4y | Bodies Corparate” 17299956 | 1248996 | 100% 17299996 Taaedas " eo% | NI

Carparate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited

1G0A/5, 10 Floor, C-Wing, One BRGC
-B&, G- Biock, Bandrs Kurla Compiex,
Bandra (Faat), Mumbar 400 051
Mtaharashera, tnedia

G WS SE9QGIZMARTCOWISS2

Tet +31 22 62411200
Fox +91 22 26520650
coantact 4cpi@adani.com
wiwwy, Adani GO

Registerag OfMice Adan Howas, 36, Shrimati Society, Naveangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India




Category of No of Shares held at the at the beginning of the Na, of Shares held at the end of Lhe yaar %
Shareholders yaar Change
Demat Physicat Tatal % of Demat Physicat Total % of during
vabal total’ | the year
Shares Shares
"8 Hanke/Fl
£) | Any Others - S—
Bub Total(A)1) ] 172999068 ) 17299498 | 100% - | 17288998 17299996 | 100% il
2 Foretgn
a) NRIs-Individuals -
o} Qther-individuals - . ™
©) Budies Corporate - - - = = P
) Barks/Fi - - - 2 -
#) | Any Qther -- - - .- - - -
Sub Taksl(A)2)} -- - or - - = . o
Total Shareholiding e T7E999496 17299595 100% " 17299996 17299956 100% Mil
of Promoter and
Pramoter Graup (A)e
(mCy+a)E)
B. Fublie
shareholding
"3 fnatitutions
8) | Mutyat Funds/ - p - -
uTl
b} Ganks/Fl - - "
i3] Central Govt.
d) | State Gove. - o
] venture Capltal - - i ™
Funds
f lnsuramee [ | o " T
Companies
R - . " " T
8] Fargign Venture
capital Funds
i} Any Qther - - w - - .. . i
Sub-Total (B)(1}

Corparate office:

Agani Capitat Privare Limited Ta) +31 22 6241 1200
TR0/, 10 Flngr, C-Wing, One BEC Fax 971 22 26520650
GRS, G- Bloci,. Bandra Kurta Complex, contact. coiEadani com
Bardia (Bast). Mumbat 400 061 WY, A AN GO

Maharashira, #dia
CiMN: UBS990G J20T6RTCO23692

Ragistered Office: Adam House. 56, Shrimali Soniety, Navrangpora, Atmedabag 330 009, Gujarat, India
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Sharchalders

yaar

Catagory of Mo of Shares held at the at tha beginning of the

No. of Sharas held at the ead of the year

Demak

Physical

TFotal

% of
totat
Shares

Domat

Physical

Total

4 of
total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

2 Nan=tnstitutions

a) Bodies Corporate

} ingdlan

fi Cverseas

Y] Individuats

| Individuais
shareholders
halding nominal
share capital up
to R 11zkh

li ndividual
strarghalders
holding namingt
share capitat in
axcess of Hs. 1
lakh,

o) Othet (2pecify)

uh-Tatal (B2}

Toral Bublic
Shareholding

(B)= (B)(1)+(8)(2)

[+4 Shares held by
Custodians for
GORs & ADRs

GRAND TOTAL -
(A)+(B)+{C)

17299996

17239996

0%

7290996

17259956

100%

il

* Shares held by Adani Finserve PVL. Ltd (AFPL) including one individual being nominee of AFPL,

Carporate office:

Adani Capital Privace Limitad

TOO4/%, T0™ Fioor, C-Wing. Qne Bk
C-06, G Block, Bandra kuila Comples.
Bandra (East), Mumbar 400 057
Maharashtia, india

CIM: UBEGR0GIZ0NHRTIDREEH2

Ragisteray Offica: Adani Housp, B Shcimalt Society, Mavrangouea, Ahmadabad 380 009, Gujarat, india

Tei +91 22 6241 1200

Fax +91 22 26020650

concact.anpi@adani.com
W aani.com




ti) Shareholding of Promaoter;

&r Sharehotder's Name Shareholding ot the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the % Change in |
No the year year sharehelding
No. of % of % shares No, of % of % shares during the
Shares total pledged/ Shares total ptedged/ year
shares | gncumbe shares | opeumbe
of the red to af the red to
compa compa
fy total ay totad
shares shares
1| Adani Finserve PvE, Led.* 172999396 100 Nil | 17299996 100 Nil Nil

* Shares held by Adani Finserve Put. Lid (AFPL) including one individua! being nominee of AFPL,

ti) Change in Promoters' Shareholding:

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the Cusmulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No, of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 17299996 100 | 17295396 100
Date wise Increase / Decrease in NIL ]

Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g, allotment / transfes/ bonus/
sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year T 17555956 | 100%

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Helders of GOR an
ADRs):

For each of the Top 10 Shareholder Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
. beginning of the year end of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares | shares of the | Shares | shares of the
Company Company

Corporate affice:

Adant Capitat Private Limited Tal +91 22 G241 1200

100475, 10 Floasr, CWing, One BIC Fawx +Q71 22 26520650

C-G5, G- Blogk, Bandra kKodla Complas, contactacpt@adani com

Bandea {Fasr), Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.qom

Mahargsnira, tndia
Gl UESIQ0GI2QIGRTCOREE92

Registered OFfice; Adani House, 56, Shiimall Soctety, Mavrangpura, Ahmedabat 380 009, Gularal, India
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At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Fromoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasans for increase / decrease {e.q. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Nil

At the end of the year

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

v,

For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
beginning of the year of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the | Shares | shares of the
Company Company

At the beginning of the yesr

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
eLo):

At the end of the year

None of the Directars and Key Managerial Personnel
hald any share in the Company.

indebhtedness:

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

{Rs. in Mn)

Secured

Details Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

: excluding Loans indebtedness

deposits

Indebtedness ar the

beginning of

the financiat year

i} Principal Amount 8,275.46 184.498 - B8.460.44

i) Interest due but not . . . .

paid

Carporare offoe

Adoni Capital Private Limited

103945, 1080 Fioor, G-Wing, One 8¢
C-66, G Block, Bandra Kuria Comies,
Bandra (East), Memial 400 051
Makatashera, Indla

CIN: UEESR0GIZ0I6PTCORIRYY

Tel +95 22 G241 1200
Fan +91 22 26520650
contactacnl@adani.com
vy adani.com

registered Oftice: Adani Flouse, 58, Shrimai Sogoly, Mavrangpura, Ahmedabiad 380 009, Gojarat, indi




iti) Interest accrued

bt}l‘. not due 54.93 - - 54.93
iv) EIR {38.92) . . (38.92)
Total (i+ii+iii) 8,291.46 184.08 - 8,476.44
Change in

indebtedness during

the financial year

« Addition 6,450,000 119.00 . 6,569.00
= Reduction (4,894.37) (296.60) . (5,190.96)
Net Change

Indebtedness at the

engd of the financial

year

i} Principal Amount 9.831.10 7.39 - 9,838,458
ii) Interest due but not X . )
paid

iii} interest accrued

blzt not due 38.36 i i 38.38
iv) EIR (76.11) . (76.17)
Total {i+ii+iii) 9,793.37 7.39 - 880075

vi.  Remuneration of Directors and Key Manageriat Personnel:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

8,
5N Particulars of Remuneration *Gaurav Gupta Total Amount
{Managing
Director & GEQ)
1 | Gross salary N.A. N.A.

a) Salary as per provisiens contained in section - -
17{1) of the tncome-tax Act, 1961

b) Value of perquisites s 17(2} Income-tax Act, - -
1961

¢y Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) -- -
Income-tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option - -

3 | Sweat Equity - _

4 | Comrission -- : --

- as % of profit - -

- _athers, specify - -

QOthers, please specify an .

Total - -~

Celling as per the Act o -

Corporats office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +8122 62431200

1045, 104 Floor, C-Wing, Gne BRG
-6k, O- Bigck, Randra Furla Gomplex,
Bandra (East), Mymbai 400 (51
Mahzrashtra, India

GIN URS9900G 2MERTCO93692

Registeret Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Soctety, Naveangpura, Ahmedabad 280 009 Guiacal, ingia

Fax +81 22 26520650
cantact agpl@adant.com
wiww.adani.com




Capital

*Mr. Gaurav Gupta has appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company wef. 31° March
2021. Hence, he has not drawn any remuneratian from Adani Capital in the Financial Year 2020-

21
¢. Remuneration to other Directors:
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Directors Total Amount
1 | Independent Directors
a) Fee for attending board, committee meetings 12,00,000 12,00,000

D) Commission - .
¢) Others, please specify - -
Totat (1)

2 | Other Non-Executive Directors
a} Fee for attending board, committee meetings - .
by Cammission . -
c} Others, please specify - )
Total {2)
Total = {1+2)
C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

5N Particulars of Remuneration #Mr. Viral Campany Tatal Amount
Shah (Chief Secretary
Financial (Bhavik Shah)
Officer)
1 | Gross salary Please refer to the Annexure C attached with

this report and to be kept at the Registered &
Corporate office for verification

a) Salary as per provisions contained -- - --
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

B) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

g} Profits in liey of salary under -- m --
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option - - .

3 | Sweat Equity = - e

4 | Commission . - - --

- as % of profit - - -

5 1 Others, please specify -- - -

Tatal - . --

# Me. Viral Shah appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company wef, 09" March 2021

VHi. Penalties / punishment/ compounding of offences:

Corporate affice:
Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +91 22 62411200

100475, 10" Figor, SWing. Do 810 Faw Q1 22 26520650
L-86, G- Block, Bandra Kutlx Comples. cuntact acplihadani com
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 081 wivwy. adani.com

Maharashera, india
CI UG53 80GI2016RTCOO3692

Registerad (Fftce. Adam House, 56, Shrimali S0¢ety. Maviangpura, Abmedabad 380 009, Gujaral, Indgia




Type Section of Brief Details of penaity/ | Autherity | Appeal made,
the Description punishment/ [RD / if any (give
Companies gompounding fees NCLT/ details)

Act imposed COURT]

A. Company

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

B. Directors

Penalty

Pupishment None

Compounding

C. Other Officers in default

Penalty

Punishment Nane

Compounding

Corpoiate office:

Adani Capical Private Limited

TA0A/5, 10 Floor, C-wing, One 8K
C-66, & Block, Bandra Kurlz Complex,
Bandra (East), Moembai 400 05

Maharashira, India

CIM: UEGOS0GIZ0150TOODIES2

Tel +91 22 62411200
Fax +91 22 265206312
contact.anpi@adani com
www.adani.com

Registered QFfing Adam House, 6. Shrimali Soctety. Mavrapgoura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, indwa




Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financiai statements of Adani Capital Private Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, incfuding the statement of Other
Comprehensive Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner 3o
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit inctuding other comptehensive loss, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiat Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Cthics' issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethicat responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for gur audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter- Assessment of COVID 19 Impact

We draw attention to note 61 to the financiai statements, which describes the uncertainties arising from COVID-19
pandemic and impact on the Company's operations and estimates related to impairment of assets, which are
dependent on future developments regarding the severity and duration of pandemic. Qur opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.

S Buthlran & Lo LLI s Limsfasd Lanbiiay Parfnacshay v ULT idordify 8o AAD-429
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The results of our audit procedures, including the pracedures performed to address the matters befow, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of loan assets as at taiance sheet date (expected credit losses)

(as described in Note 50.1 of the financial statements)

Ind AS 109: Financial instruments ("Iind AS 109
requires the Company fo provide for impairment of its
loan assets using the expected credit loss (ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their fife,
considering reasonabje and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could impact the
credit guality of the Company's loans and advances.
in this process, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management for:

a) Defining Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR™) and
‘default’ categories);

k) Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by
using appropriate statistical technigues;

c) Estimation of behavioral life;

d} Estimation of losses for loan products with no/
minimat historical defauits; and

e) Management overlay for macro-economic factors
and estimation of their impact on the credit
quality.

Additional considerations on account of COVID-19

The spread of COViD-19 has severety impacted many
economies around the globe. Businesses are being
forced to cease or limit operations for fong or
indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain
the spread of the virus, including travet bans,
quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-
essential  services have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic
stowdown and economic uncertainties. Measures have
aiso been taken by the Government and the Reserve
Bank of India {o ease the burden on businesses from
hardship, such as the Reserve Bank of India circular
dated August 6, 2020 for "Micro, Smal and Medium
Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of
Advances” and Resotution Framework for COVID-19-
refated Stress” and RBI circular dated March 27,
2020 and May 23, 2020 ("RB! Circulars™)

@ allowing lending institutions to implement a
resolution plan in respect of its eligible
exposures, subject to specified conditions and

° aliowing iending institutions to offer moratorium
to borrowers on payment of instaiments falling
due between March 1, 2020 and August 31,
2020, the Company has extended moratorium
to its borrowers in accordance with its Board

- approved policy.

Qur audit procedures included the foliowing:

+ Evaluated the Company's accounting poficies
for impairment of loan assets and assessed
compliance with the poiicies in terms of
Ind AS 109 and with the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines
issued on March 13, 2020.

¢ Read and assessed the Company's policy with
respect to one-time restructuring offered to
customers pursuant to the RBI circulars and
tested the implementation of such policy on a
sampie basis,

= Evaluated the management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL estimation
and related assumptions and tested the
controis around data extraction and validation.

 Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to evaiuate
compiiance with requirement of Ind AS 109.
Tested samples of performing leans (stage 1)
to assess whether any SiCR or loss indicators
were present requiring them to be classified
under stage 2 or stage 3 (also refer note 50.1
of the financial statements)

o Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as
SiCR.

s Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Tested the input
data used for determining the Probability of
default and loss given default rates and agreed
the data with the underlying books of account
and records.

s Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company.

s Read and assessed adequacy of the
disciosures included in  the financial
statements in respect of ECL with the

requirements of Ind AS 107 Financiaf
instruments: Disclosure ("Ind AS 107") and ind
AS 109,
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

in management’s view and considering the guidance
provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india ("{CAI", providing moratorium to borrowers at a
mass scale, based on RBI directives, by itself is not
considered to result in a SICR for such borrowers. The
Company has recorded a management overlay as part
of its ECL, to refiect among other things an increased
risk of deterioration in macro-economic factors
caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the unique
nature and scale of the economic impact of this
pandemic, the macroeconomic overfay estimate is
based on various highly uncertain and unobservable
factors. In accordance with the guidance in ind AS
109, the macroeconomic overfay estimate takes into
account reasonably and supportable information
without incurring significant cost. The actua! credit
fosses could be significantly different than the ECL
estimates prepared by the Company depending upon
the impact and duration of the pandemic and various
requlatory and policy measures announced by the
Government.

In view of such high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, accentuated
by the COVID-19 pandemic and related events, it s
identified as a key audit matter.

(b) information technology CiT") systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of the
Company are fundamentally refiant on {Y systems and
IT controls to process significant transaction
volumes, Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which include IT governance,
general IT controfs over program deveflopment and
changes, access to programs and data and iT
operations, are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure appropriate financial
reporting.

Theretore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment of
the generatl IT controls and the application controis
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

Cur audit procedures,

with support from IT

specialists, included the foltowing:

Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of IT access controls over the information
systems that are critical to financial reporting.

Tested IT general controis (such as logical
access, changes management and aspects of
IT operational controfs). This included testing
that requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

Tested the Company's periodic review of
access rights, We inspected requests of
changes to systems for appropriate approval
and authorization,

In addition to the above, we tested the design

and operating effectiveness of certain
application controls C(automated and T
dependent manual controls} that were

considered as key internal controis owver
financial reporting.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures,
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Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report but does not inciude the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing toreport in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Thase Charged with the Management for the Finangial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities;
seiection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonahle and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maint enance of adequate internat financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant io the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicablfe, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company ¢r to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are afso responsibfe for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements as a whole are free from
materiai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonabie assurance is a high {evel of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs wilt always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are
considered material if, individuatly or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and ohtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal controf refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsibie for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financiat cantrols with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. *  Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
"+ related disclosures made by management.

- Vacanclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
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the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, |f we concfude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financiai statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financiaf statements, including the disciosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underfying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compfied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali refationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appiicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financiaf statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these mafters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we defermine that a matter shoutd not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonabiy be expected to outweigh
the pubfic interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Laga! and Regulatory Reguirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained aff the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(B) in our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies ¢Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2021 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) {n our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided by
the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the expianations given to us:

il The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

-

v
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il.  The Company did not have any fong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable fosses:

fli.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 201003E/E300005

r Jitendra H. Ranawat

Partner .
Membership Number: 103380
UDIN: 21103380AAAABYT7711 .
Piace: Mumbai

Date: June 18, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other [eqal and requiatory requirements' of our
report of even date

Re: Adani Capital Private Limited (“the Company™)

(i

(i

(i

(iv)

)

(vid

{viiy

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b} All fixed assets were physicaily verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with a planned
programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment/fixed assets are held in the name of the company.

The Company's business does nof invoive inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3 (ii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liabifity Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 1B9 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iiiXa}, (b) and (c) of the
Order are not appiicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 1B6 of the Act are applicable
and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the
Order are not appiicable,

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Therefore,
in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and
services tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight defay in a few cases. The provisions relating to
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and expfanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payabie in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
services tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax and cess are not appiicable to the Company,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, empioyee's state
insurance, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The provision
refating to safes tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are currently not applicable to
the Company.

{vii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has

Gix)

_ (x)

not defauited in repayment of ioans or borrowing to a financial institution, Hank or government or dues to
debenture holders,

According to the information and expianations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer. Further, monies raised
by the Company by way of non-convertible debentures on private placement basis and term loans were applied
for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate
utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting on the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and exptanations given by the management, we report that no fraud

;s by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or

reported during the year.
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(xiy Accaording to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not appticable
and hence not commented upon.

(xi) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(xiii} According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
the details have been disciosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting reguirements under clause 3(xiv) are not
applicabte to the company and, not commented upon.

{xv) According to the information and exptanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

{xvi) According to the information and expianations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has registered as required, under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batfibai & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Numper: 103380 ¢
UDIN: 21103380AAAABY7711
Piace: Mumbai

Date: June 18, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other {egal and requlatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controfs under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financiat controls with reference to these financial statements of Adani Capital Private
Limited (the “Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibifity for Internal Financiat Controis

The Company's Management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internai control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financial Controls Qver Financiat Reporting {the
"Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICA1"). These responsibitities inciude the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditor’s Responsibitity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financiat controls with reference to these financial
statements based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143¢10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we compiy
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controis with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controts operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidente about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to these financial statements and thelr operating etfectiveness., Qur audit of internal financial controls
with reference {o the financiat statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal controf based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiat statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internat financial controls with reference to these financial statements,

Meaning of Internat Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financiat reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controis with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlai Controls With Reference to These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent timitations of internal financial controts with reference to these financial statements, inctuding
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controfs, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai financial controls with reference to
- .these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financiat control with reference
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to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ail materiai respects, adeguate internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were operating
effectivety as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal controf over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA! Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
UDIN: 21103380AAAABY 7711
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 18, 2021




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Batance Sheet as at March 33, 2021
Al amounts in Rs. in Mitlions unless otherwise stoted)

Particulars Note As at As at
ne. Match 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
{1} Financial assets
{a) Cashand cash equivatents ? 1,431.53 932.86
(b} Receivables
{) Trade receivables 8 195 3.09
(<} Loans 9 11,652.65 10,086.32
{d} Investments 10 - 450.48
[e) Other financial assets 13 184,61 51.86
13,270.75 11,594.71
{2) Non-financial assets
{a)  Curvent tax assets {net) 37.59 58.50
{b) Deferred tax assets (net} 15 19.48 46.56
{c} Property, plant and equipment 11 192.90 222.46
{d] Intangible assets under develapment 0.09 8.88
{e) Otherintangible assets 12 133.76 107.17
{fi  Qther non-financial assets 14 30.08 2307
413,90 466.64
Total assets 13,684.65 12,061.35
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1} Financial liabilities
{a) Payables
{i)Trade payables
{i) totat outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises 16 . .
[t} total autstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises 16 71.54 48.44
and small enternrises
{1} Other payables
{i) total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
{ii}) total gutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 19.07 16.62
and small entesprises 16
b} Debrsecurities 17 2,518.71 984.52
{c}  Borrowings [other than debt securities) 18 7,2B4.05 7.492.34
(d] Other financial jiabikities 19 23202 178.68
10,123.79 8,720.60
{2} Non-financiat liabilities
{a} Provisions 20 46.05 22.17
{6}  Qrther non-financiak liabilities 21 1147 15.93
58.53 38.10
EQUITY
fal Equity share capital 22 173.00 173.00
{b} Other equity 3 3,129.33 2,129.65
3,502.33 330265
Total liabltities and equity 13,684.65 12,061.35

The accompanying netes torem an integral part of the standalone finandiat statements 1-64

Rs per our seport of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Adani Capital Private Limited

[CAL Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 CEN: UBS990GJ2016PTCN93692
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rjrtendra H. Ranawat ~———" e Garav Gupta~”  Mr. Sagar R. Adani

Partner MD&CEO Director
Membership No; 103380 DIN: 01669109 DIN: 07626229
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Place: June 1B, 2021 <Viral Shah ™r. Bhavik SR3h
DCate: Mumbai cgcr” Compuany Secretary

Membership No: A56979



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
[Alf grigunts in Rs. in Miliont unless otherwise steted}

s Nate Yeur ended Year ended
Particulars
No March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue From operations
{i} Interest income 24 1,756.90 1,743.11
{ii} Fees and commission Income 25 - 37.50
(iif} Met gain on fair value changes 26 15.39 772
liv} Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 127.28 -
{1} Total revenus from operations 1,899.58 1,288.33
{H) Other incame 27 7.51 183
(i) Totai income {1+ 1} 1,907.09 1,290.18
Expenses
{i} Finance costs 28 850.90 479,77
{ii} tmpairment on financial instruments 29 27.65 43.02
{i} Employee benefits expenses 30 53543 543.58
{iv] Depreciadon, amortization and impairment 31 5754 4397
(v} Others expenses 32 234.34 159.96
{1V} Total expenses 1,705.86 1,220.70
(V) Profit before tax {ill - iv) 201.23 19.46
{Vi} Tax Expanse:
{1) Current Tax 11.30 49.00
{2} Deferred Tax 27.16 §i.78)
{VIi} Profit for the period {V-Vi} 182.77 12.25
{VII) Other comprehensive income
(i) Frems that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
{a} Remeasurements of the defined benelit plans {0.33} 8.07
(i) Incorne tax refating to iterns that witl nat be reclassified to profit or loss 0.08 (2.25)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (A + B} (0.23} 5.82
{iX) Total comprehensive Incame for the period (Vi + VI 162,54 18.07
{X) Earnings per equity share (Face Vaiue Rs 10 per share / Nominal Value Rs 10 per share) 35
Basic {Rs.) 9.43% 071
Diluted {(Rs.} %.40 o7l
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 1-64

As per aur report of even date

For S.R. Batfiboi & Co. tLf

Chartered Accountants

ICA{ Firm Registration Number: 301003€/E300005
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per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Portner
Membership Na: 103380

Place:  June 18, 202f - -
Date: Mumbai :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Company Secretary
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Millions unless atherwise scatad]

Paritiutars ' For the Year ended For the Year ended
SRS March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash flow pperating activities
Net Profit / {Loss) before tax 201.23 19.46
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 57.54 4397
Impairment of financial instrument 27,65 43.02
Interest on lease Habiliry 15.08 1201
Profit oo sale of mutual funds {14.90) {7.71)
Share based payment to employees 30,29 "
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - gratuity {0.3%) B.O7
Net gain on derecognition of financial instrements under amortised cost ¢ategory {127.28) -
{Profit}/Lass on sale of property, plant and equipment (2.02} -
Interest income {1,756.90} {1,243.11)
Finanee Cost 835.82 467.76
Cash inflow from interest 1,723.95 1.071.00
Cash outflow from finance cost (844.62} {422.25)
Cash generated frem / [used in) operations before working capital changes 145.62 {7.78)
Adustments for changes in Working Capital ;
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade recelvable 1.16 {2.10}
Decrease / {increase) in toans {1,546.54) {5,314.70}
Decrease / {increase} in Other finangial assets {3.00} {30.20}
Decrease / {increase) in Other non-financial assets (50.66) {40.80}
{Decrease) / lncrease in Trade payables 24.26 1377
(Decrease)} / Increase in Other financial tiabilities 59.54 21.00
{Decrease} / Increase in Provisian 23.89 5.70
{Dacrease) / increase in Other nan-financial liabitities {3.46) 4.14
{3,345.19) (5,350.97}
Refund / (Payment) of taxes (net) 9,61 {22.75)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A} /(1,339.58) {5,373.72)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets {40.70) {62.14)
increasef{decresse) in capital wark-in-progress and intangible assets under developrment B.78 27.83
Purchase of investments {27,798.00} [19,277.53)
Proceeds from sale of investmants 18,263.41 19,337,51
Met cash generated from / (used in} investing activities {8} 433.49 125.67
C. Cash fiow from financing activities
Payment of principal portion of lease kabilities [15.21} (8.98)
Paymient of interest on lease liabilities {15.08) {12.01)
Amount recetved from debt securities 2,500.00 980.00
Repayment of borrowing from debt securities {280.00} -
Amount received from borrowing other than debt securities 4,069.00 9,237.38
Repayment of borrowing other than debt securities {4,210.85) {4,063.11)
Net cash generated from / {used in} finanding activities {C} 1.344.76 6,132.28
Net Increase / (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C} 438,67 884.23
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of vear 992,86 108.63
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,431.53 592,86




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in Rs. in Millions unless otherwise stated]

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 046 -
Balances with banks 481.00 42.68
Fixed deposit with bank {Original maturity fess than 3 months} 950.07 950.18
143153 992.86

The abave Stetement of cush flow has been prepared under the indicect method set out in fnd AS 7 - Statement of Cosh Flow.
For disclosures refating to changes in liabilities arising fram financing activities, refer note 44

As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batiiboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Numbes: 301 003E/E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Adani Capital Private Limited
CiN: U659906G)2016PTCO93657
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amavats in Rs. in Millians unless otherwise stated}

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Asat Asat
March 3%, 2021 March 31, 2028
Issued, subscribed and paid up
{Equity share of Rs, 10 each, fully paid-up}
Balance as at the baginning of the year 173.00 173.00
Add: Issued during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 173.00 173.00
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Share option
Particufars Securities premium|  Special reserve  {Retained earnings outstanding Tatal
atcount

Balance at April 1, 2019 3,128.76 16,90 {34.08} - 3,111.58
Profit for the year - - 12.25 - 12.15
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans - - 582 - 5.82
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {net of tax) - - 18.07 18,07
Transfer / utifisations
Trangferred to special reserve from retained 2arnings - 245 {2.45} - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,128.76 19.35 {18.46) - 3,129.65
Profit for the year 162,77 162.77
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans

{0.23} (0.3}
Share based payment expense 37.14 37.14
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {net of tax} - - 162.54 37.14 199.68
Transfer / utliisations
Transfarred to special reserve from retained earnings - 32.55 {32.55} " -
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,128.76 5190 111.53 37.34 3,329.33

As per our repart of even date

for 5.R. Bathiboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 3010038/E300005

o

——

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Pgrtner
Membership No: 103380

Place: june 1B, 2021
Date: Mumbai
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies:

1.

Corporate Information:

Adani Capital Private Limited {the ‘Company’} was incorporated in India on September 12, 2016
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’).

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company holds a Certificate of Registration {CoR) as Non-Banking Financial Institution,
without accepting public deposits, registered with the Reserve Bank of india {“RB¥#"} under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company received its certificate of registration
as a non-banking finance Company on January 6, 2017 having registration number B.01.00567.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adani Finserve Private Limited.

The Registered office of the company is Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380008.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorised for
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 18th June 2021,

Basis of Preparation:;

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 {as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as, other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at
fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and al! vaiues are
rounded to the nearest Millions, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6 -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies {indfan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant
provisions of the Act.

Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the company are presented as per Division Il of the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current} is
presented in Note 45 — Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generatly reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also
intend to settle on a net basis in all the following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business

*  The event of defauit

° The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

5. Significant accounting policies:

5.1 Revenue from operations:

511

5.1.2

Interest income:

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR} to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial
assets classified as measured at FYTPL,

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

* As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.

s By considering ali the contractual terms of the financial instrument in
estimating the cash flows

¢ Including ali fees received/paid between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and al! other
premiums or discounts,

Any subsequent changes'in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in
interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the net amortised cost {net of expected credit loss) of the financial
asset. If Financial Asset is cured and is no longer credit impaired, the Company starts
calculating interest income on gross basis.

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized

a. When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. it is probahle that the economic benefits associated with the dividend wilt flow
to the entity and

€. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

513

Fees and Commission income:

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-
step model as set out below, unless included in the effective interest catculation:

Step 1: ldentify contract({s} with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is
a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts coliected
on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price te the performance obligations in the contract:
Fora contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance
obligation

5.2 Financial instruments:

5.2.1

5.2.2

Date of Recognition:

Financiat assets and liabilities, with the exception of ioans and borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally estabiished by regulation or convention in the marketpiace. Loans are
recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Company
recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

tnitial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial ability are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair
value through profit & loss (FVTPL}}, are added to or subtracted from the fair value of
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

5.23

5.2.4

Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss:

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair vaiue at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in
market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value
is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference
between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all its financial assets based on the business model for
managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets at amortised cost {AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business modei
whose objective is to hotd assets for collecting contractuat cash flows and contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
for the payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH}

A financial asset is measured at FVTQC if it is held within business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets that give rise to cash flows on
specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Financlal Assets at fair value through profit & foss {FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of above categories are measured at
FVTPL. The Company measures alf financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at
each reporting date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit
and loss account.
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Notes to the Financial $tatements for the year ended March 31, 2021

5.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been
purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities
or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-
trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The company measures debt {ssued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at
each reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the E{R.

Here debt securities and other borrowed funds also include non — convertible
debenture.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL on initial recognition:

Financiai assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for
trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or
are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management
only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the
following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis:

s Thedesignation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis, or

o The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, or

* The habilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do
not significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the
contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a simiiar instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s} is prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of
movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the
Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair vaiue are recorded in the Own credit
reserve through OCl and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or
incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance
cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

5.3.4

5.3.5

gualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on
assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual
interest rate.

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Company is required to provide a foan with pre-specified terms to
the customer. Currently Company has not recognised any ECL in respect of undrawn
commitment

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:Financial instruments issued by the
Comipany are classified as either financial liahilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of 3 financial
liability and an equity instrurment.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments,
financial guarantees.

5.4 Reclassification of financial assets and finandial liabilities:

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business fine. The company didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities
in current period and previous period.

5.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:

551

Derecognition of financial asset:

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group
of similar financial assets} is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if
it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if and only if; efther

¢ TheCompany has transferred the rights to receive cash fiows from the financial
asset or

¢ |t retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset
but assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without
material detay to third party under ‘pass through’ arrangement,

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a Financial asset (the 'original asset'},
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities
{the ‘eventual recipients’), when all of the foliowing conditions are met:
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55.2

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients
unfess it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding
short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus
accrued interest at market rates.

s The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to
the eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it colfects on behalf of the eventuai
recipients without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest
such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest
earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

& The Company has transferred substantially ali the risks and rewards of the
asset, or

® The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to seli the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able

to exercise that ability unilateraily and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset,
with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets
are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset
is deemed to be POCIL.

if the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of' a new
liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original finandial liability
and the consideration paid, inciuding modified contractual cash flow recognised as
new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit and loss.
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5.6 Impairment of financial assets:
Overview of ECL principles

The Company records aliowance for expected credit losses for ali loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as
‘Financial Instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under !nd AS 109,

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because
ECL consider the amount and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects
to be paid in fult but tater than when contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss
allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL.

General Approach

The ECL alfowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the fife of the asset {the
lifetime expected credit loss}, unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a finandal instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on a collective basis, depending on the
nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has grouped its loans
into corporate loans, business loans given to MSMEs (MSME)}, home loans, commercial vehicle
loans and supply chain finance.

During the year 2019-20 ACPL has acquired the Loan Portfolio from Essel Finance Business
Loans Limited.

The loans acquired have been further segmented into the foliowing pools / portfolios:

a) Business Loans given to MSMEs (MSME} — Comprise of Secured and Unsecured Loans
given,

b) Loans to Financial Institution Funding {MFI/ NBFC) and

c} Other Loans — These are primarily unsecured in nature.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
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recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit
risk at a borrower level,

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as
described below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired
upon origination are classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances
and advances upto 30 days default under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL
{resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date} are recognized.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit impaired are dassified under this stage. Assets which are 20 Days Past Due
and less than 90 Days Past Due are considered as significant increase in credit risk. For these
assets lifetime ECL are recognized.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this
stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost {net
of Expected Credit Loss} rather than the gross carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered
as default for classifying a financial instrurment as credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets

"At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCH are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have accurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observabie data:
s Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
@ Abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company
would not consider otherwise;

e [t is becoming probable that the borrower wilf enter bankruptcy or ather financial
reofganization; or

¢ The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficuities.”
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The calculation of ECL

"The mechznics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follow

Probability of Default

The Probabitity of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.
A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not
been previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further
explained in Note 50.1 - Risk Management — Credit Risk.

Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Defauit {(EAD} is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking
into account expected changesin the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments
of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns
on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The concept of EAD is
further explained in Note 50.1 — Risk Managernent — Credit Risk.

Loss given Default

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at
a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note
50.1 - Risk Management — Credit Risk

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. in assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly Increased the Company considered rebuttable presumption that credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic
developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the
Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP,
unempioyment rates, benchrnark rates set by the Reserve Bank of indfa, inflation etc. with the
estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internat data. While the internal
estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships,
temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic
trends reasonably.

5.7 Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The coilateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, vehicles, real estate, etc. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on

I
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the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of
ECLs. The collateral are assessed at time of inception and are being reassessed as and when
required.

5.8 Collateral repossessed;

In its normal course of business, the Company engages external agents to repossess and
recover funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned
to the customers/obligors. As a resuit of this practice, assets under legal repossession
processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

5.9 Write-offs:

5.10

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the armounts
subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the
statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either,

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must he accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified
based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement
date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
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5.11

with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the batance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data availabie over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs
other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset
or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.
However, if such adjustments are based on uncbservable inputs which are significant to the
entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments

Those that include one or more unohservable input that is significant to the measurement as
whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodically reviews its valuation technigues including the adopted
methodologies and model calibrations. Therefore, the Company applies various technigues to
estimate the credit risk associated with its financial instruments measured at fair vaiue, which
include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected net exposure per
counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of
the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the leveliing at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the
reporting periad.

Leases:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities
representing obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underiying assets.
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5.11.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
cornmencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. {Refer to the accounting policies on
impairment of non-financial assets.)

5.11.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable jease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees, The jease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
{unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

in calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicitin the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the {ease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments
resufting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note 19).

5.11.3 Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assats

The Campany applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {i.e.,
those ieases that have a lease term of 12 months or fess from the commencement date and
do not cantain a purchase option}. it aiso applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and |eases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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5.12

5.13

5.14

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential ditution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of
the Company. Transactions in currencies other than indian Rupees {i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which
they arise.

Retirement and other emgployee benefits:
5.14.1 Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accruat basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and ioss.

5.14.2 Gratuity:

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net
obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of
the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amountsincluded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability}, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin the period in which
they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

5.14.3 Compensated ahsences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain
aumber of their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling.
The Company recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and
corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on
a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits
is determined using the projected uni credit method.

5.14.4 Share-Based Payments:

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees provid ing services are measured
at the fair vaiue of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settied share-based payments transactions
are setoutin Note 52.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based
payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting perted, the Company
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest, The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of diluted earnings per share.

5.15 Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumutated
depreciation and impairment loss if any, The cost comprises the purchase price and incidental
expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit or loss during the
reporting period, as and when they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-{ine method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with
the estimated usefut life as spedified in Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013

As per the requirement of Schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated
the useful fives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the
Scheduie I for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are
as follows;
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5.16

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Office equipment 5years

Computer Systems 3 years

Electrical Installation 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office Premises On the lease term

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is
derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposat or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or joss,

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is

probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
company.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amartization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected usefut life, or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by
changing the amartization period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amaortization expense on intangible assets with finite
fives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 10 years based on its estimated
useful life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

For transition to ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
intangitle assets recognised as of 1 April 2018 {transition date) measured as per the previous

GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
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5.17 Impairment of non-financiaf assets:

5.18

5.19

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. if such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset helongs to is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed, and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabifities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legat or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that refiects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability,

A present obiigation that arises from past events, where it is either not probabte that an
outfiow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is disclosed as a contingent liabitity. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there
is a possibie obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow
of resources in settiement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Income tax expenses:
5.19.1 Currenttax:

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of taxable income for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

5.19.2 Deferred tax;

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financia! reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
fability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss.

P&‘r g v;.JQ, _



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets are recognised for afl deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax [osses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit and foss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
{and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correfation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

5.19.3 Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT}:

in accordance with the provision of Section of 115JAA of the Income-Tax Act, 1961,
the Company is allowed to avail credit equal to the excess of MAT over normal income
tax for the assessment years for which MAT is paid. MAT credit so determined can be
carried forward for set-off for ten succeeding assessment years from the year in which
such credit becomes allowable. MAT credit can be set off only in the year in which the
Company to pay tax as per the normal provisions of the income Tax Act, 1361 and
such tax is in excess of MAT for that year. Accordingly, MAT credit entitlement is
recognised as deferred tax only to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax during the specified period, Such asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written
down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay the normal income tax during the specified period.

5.20 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:

Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses
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Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid,
except:

* When the tax incurred an a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

¢ Whenreceivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

5.21 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash {short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
cheques on hand and balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-
term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes}.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short- term deposits, as defined above.

6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. £stimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the financial statements is included in the foliowing notes:

6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:
6.1.1 Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI} and the business model test. The Company
determines the business mode] at a level that refiects how Company's financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Cornpany monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
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prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was heid.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model
for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business mode! and so a praspective change
to the classification of those assets.

6.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financiai year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

6.2.1 Fair value of financial instruments;

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financiai assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannct be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

6.2.2 Effective Interest Rate {EIR)} Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as expfained in Note 5.1, recognises interest income /
expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return
over the expected behavioural life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of
potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product
life cycle including prepayments and penaity interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behaviour and life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to india's base rate and
other fee income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

6.2.3 Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment tosses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.
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The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates inciude:

e PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

¢ The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected
credit foss and the qualitative assessment.

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
« Development of ECL models, including the various formuias and the choice of inputs

¢ Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic
inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD
and LGD

» Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probabitity
weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

¢ The impact of COVID -19 on the globat economy and how government, business and
consumer is uncertain This uncertainty is reflected in the Company’s assessment of
impairment allowance on its loans which are subject to a number of management
judgement and estimated. While methodologies and assumption applied remains
unchanged, Company has separately incorporated estimates, assumption and
judgements specific to the impact of COVID -19 pandemic.

In terms of the requirements as per RB! notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
{NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on Impiementation of Indian
Accounting standard , Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and Income
Recognition , Asset Classification and Provisioning {fRACP} norms {including provision on
standard assets). The impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 made by the company exceeds
the total provision required under IRACP (inciuding standard asset provisioning), as at 31
March 2021 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve.

It is Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

6.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount.
An asset's recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its
value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

6.2.5 Provision and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a
heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in
various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary
course of its business.




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

When the Company can reliably measure the outfiow of economic benefits in relation to a
specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision
against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable,
but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses,
the Company takes into account a number of factors including fegal advice, the stage of the
matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to
conclude on these estimates.

6.2.6 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes induding
judgement on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve caomplex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
periods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evajuated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

6.2.7 Leases - Estimating the Incremental Borrowing rate;

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its incremental borrowing rate ({BR} to measure fease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no abservable rates are available or when they need
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the iease. The Company estimates the
IBR using observable inputs when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.

6.2.2 Share-Based Payments:

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate
valuation model. The Company measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with Option
haolders using Black-Schotes Mode! to determine the fair vaiue of the options on the grant
date.

Inputs into the valuation model, inciudes assumption such as the expected life of the share
option, volatility and dividend yield.

Further details used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 5.14.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amounts in Rs. in Milllans unless otherwise stated}

Cash and cash equivatents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Cash on hand 0.46 -
Balances with banks 481.00 42.68
fixed deposit with bank {Original maturity fess 550.07 950.18
than 3 months}
Totaf 1,431.53 992.86
Receivables
. Trade Receivables
As at March 31, 2021
Loss Net
Particul
cutars Expasure Allowance Amount
Considered Good - Securad v - -
Considered Gpad - Unsecured 2.02 {0.07} 1.95
Total 2.02 {0.07} 1.95
As at March 31, 2020
Loss Net
Particulars Exposi
rpasure Allowance Amount
Considered Good - Secured - - -
Considered Good ~ Unsecured 318 {0.05) 3.09
Total 3.18 {0.09) 31.09
. Reconcitiation of impairment aliowance on trade receivables:
Far the year For the year
Particular ended ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
impairment altowance as per simplifled approach
Opening Ralance 0.09 0.03
Add/f{less): On Assets ariginated or acquired [net) 10.02} 0.06
Closing Balance 0.07 0.09

No trade or other receivuble are due from directors or other officers of the campuany either severally or jointly with By other person. Nor ony frade or other
receivable ore due from firms or private companies respectively in which any directar is o partner, o director ar o member.

. Trade receivable days past dues

As at March 31, 2021 0-30 21-60 61-90 91-360 ftora than 360 Total
Estimated total pross carrying amaunt at default 0.68 0.66 - 0.20 0.48 .02
ECL - Simplified approach [0.02} {0.02) - 10,01} {0.02) {0.07)
Net canrying amount 0.66 0.64 - 0.19 0.46 1.95

As at March 31, 2020 0-30 31-60 61-80 91.360 More than 360 Totat
Estimated total gross carrylng amount at defauit 170 114 - 0.14 0.20 3.18
ECL - Simplified approach {0.05} {0.03} - 0.00} [0.01) {0.09)
Met carmying amount 1.65 1.11 - 0.14 0.19 .09

//"?
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs, in Millions unless atherwise stated)

9 Loans
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amortised cost Amortised cost
{A) Loans 11,829.29 10,245.28
Total - Gross {A) 11,829.29 10,245.28
Less: Impairment {oss allowance {176.63) {148.96}
Tatal - Net of impairment loss allowance (A} 11,652.66 10,096.32
{B} (i} Secured by tangible assets 9,325.85 £,248.72
{if} Unsecured 2,503.44 1,995.56
Total - Gross {8) 11,829.29 10,245.28
Less: impairment foss allowance (176.63) {148.96})
Tetal - Net of impairment loss allowance (B} 11,652.66 10,096.32
{€) Loans in india
{i} Public sectors - -
{ii) Others 11,829.29 10,245.28
Total - Gross {C) 11,829.29 10,245.28
Less: Impairment loss allowance {176.63) {148.96)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance {€) 11,652.66 10,096.32




9FRL vt 65750 £9 9T - '8 6591 85°L4 auejeq Huisop - duemolje 1]
{B9¥) 6LE iy 00'SE - 00'SE - . Suotjejnafes 133 foy pasn sindut pue S|PPaLW 03 seueyl
1e0A 3wy Bupnp sale)s
PEST FOST 0 - onQ - {300} {el'0} 580 UIaMlag paliajsued sainsodsd §o 173 pud Jeah uc Pedu
- 0.0 {80'0} oo - - BL'bE 06°1} {8872} £ adels 0 si3jsuel
" - g9'0 {590} - - - [ 443 {1ards] Z 3dels 01 siagsuRlf
{861} w0 8L%) (vzez) t09'19) - er's) {os01) fewer {5)0 a3 Juipnipxa) pledas 1o pasiudedalap Skt
SE'0TT 559 oz'e 0440t LT'FS “ 55 BE'Z [4:%: 14 paseynd 10 JAIRUIELIC 519558 MBK
10'€e o F{4:]2 LB'CL 855'ArT - 99'81 [15:14 65501 sauejed Jupuato - pauemoje 103
[T 1204 § adels Z 2838 T adej§ [T 04 ¢ aaElg 7 oBeg P e
QL-6T0T Ad 120202 Ad naped
{MD[AG UBA|R S| 3IUEMO|[E 173 $0 UD|I8)|IH02TH
EERA0H EB'SH 547819 0L 0856 625781 - 0TE91 99°065 EF'546°0T surieq Juiso)d unowe Bulllsed ss0un
9E°9E £20 8IS ¥60E 85°€T - 60T 86'v 6t} JUBUNSAIpY 1D
- - - - 00'g - {685} {89'857) L%'b9t papesBdn Buifieys siassy
- j1yE {€g't) (64757} {000 M L9021 {829y} {68°EL) £ aBe1g 01 sipjsuelf,
- SE'SZ {seszh - - - 09 {z¢'09¢%) Z 2815 03 s13jsuesy
{9£869'7) - (0 £0T} {eetes'z) {6L°6TE'S} - 1LLFT) {eL'8E8) {6£:991's} {5130 a3pm Bujpniaxa) pledat Jo pasiuBoralap siassy
8ELSL'E £0°8T S2'05¢ 1988 0604 - Li'tr or'QsT SO'SER'S paseyarnd Jo pajewndio 51a55e Man
06'LSL'Y 9%'0 858k 79'892°t 8LSH20T - £B°SP SLBTY 04°085'6 ssugjeg Jufado Junowe Bullre S50
Y 1204 FEER Zadms T 25eys [GE 120d £ adeig 7 aseys 1 a8e1g J—
OZ-6TOE Ad 12-0702 Ad

"SIBJSURIL 5IY] 03 NP ISEIIIIP JO 3SLIIIU| WUASI A Jajsuel a3eis woly Juisiie 133 JO JUBWRINSEIWSS 13U AYL "9 10} BIUEMOKE PAIEIIOSSE pue sunowe Buikiied 3048 ayy uodn sajsuesn alels
$0 oedwi ayy suasaadar S138sE [BOVRUY JO J3j5uLT) YL "JBW015ND BULIODE) PUB [I219) ¢ $1EI0CIDI 0L $DIUBAPE PUC SUBO) JO) S3IUEMOJE 133 PUe Junowe Juikised 55043 s AUeDoD ay) JO UOHENIIU02) aspm adess apransd unsopsip Suma)o) oyl

~t Bugioydey g sio) na i2ad ' 2130403 0] SFIUEARE PUE SURD) JO§ FUEMOYLE 103 Bujpuodsasiod pue Junowe FuwiAue 55003 uf saduRy? JO UOIRIEIVONIY
8Z°502'0L 13574 SLBTY 0L085°6 62°6Z8'1T - 07'E9T 99°069 £9'5L601 _23.
EET] [ - - ozest . pz'est - - Pasjedw; Afferpigl
Hujuloped -uoN
L5511 . LS'STT - T0'SHT . . T0'SHE - paJledius 30U ING IAP 15td
BT 05 - FUE0s - L9989 - - L2'99¢ - apesd prepuels-gng
£0°06E N - £0'06E ¥E'059 - - 9509 SL68% apeJd prepues
L9061 - - L0616 05'v0s'0% - - T28TT 89°S8E°0T apesd ydH
Bujuiouog

210, T 9E 2[5
1§01 15364 99815 e T 09€35 (ELIN 30d t ey ¢ anes T sdes apeI? BURL USRI}

DT-4CN-TE TZ-eN-TE

fuipesd jeusaiuy

9T°T°0§ S50N U M0 135 3Je SI5Eq JANDF[0D JO IENPIAIPUI UE LD PATRINDIES 3B S3JUBMOIE 13 JIYIBYM UD S3|NIDT pue T'0S FIoN Ui pauiejdsa ale wajsds

s, Aueduwio] ay} jO sSpelaQ s¥puemojje UAwsedw) jo 55063 3ie paluasasd SIUNOWe 2y] "UONE3Nysse IFeIS PUa-1eaA $AURTLIOD Ayl U0 PISEG HSL UPIE O 2NS0dya WHUNXEW 3yl puE Apjenb 31pas ay) smoys MO Qe dy)

$1355y o AjenD Hpa)
sueol

{E21ans FHMIBNI0 SE3Hh SLOUIA W *$) W StUnawD 1)

TZOT ‘TE YMRN papua sead ayn 40} SJUIWDLLS |RIJURU|] DY) OF STION

Q3LINN ILVARd TYLIIVD INYOY




AR

..... — ﬁgwm
- . - - N ssue(eq Juso
{gez1) - {re'TT) . - PaIRiEut 53355y
. . . - - U0 {RIUBLLBIIL]
86'Z1 - 86'CT - - 133 ui Sauepeq Supuasdg
[e10} € 2338 7 38uig 1 28e35 [eto € 2de1s FE I 1 a3e15 T

OT-610¢ TZ-0Z02 N ed
- Z ~ - - dueeq Busop)
(LLTo9) - (22709} - - pRITEu 51955y
- - - - - anp JOU Ing PanSIDE 35849l
LLT09 - LLT09 - - 23uejeq Juiuado — wnowe SujALIe) $5015

jesoL € 2aeis Z age1s T 8835 12301 £ admig z adeig 1 28elg SIBNIILLE

02-610¢ T7-020% Inansed
:smayioy se $) 57173 Jupuodsalied 9y pue Junowe Juihised sso.d wl sadueyd jo sisAjeun uy
805t - {3-v)=315N - (e104
- . {7) 550} UaLLI|RDW} JO) BIUBMOHY 15587
8y05P - () ssos - @30l
8 '0sy - eIpuf Uk sJuawysaal) (i}
B - eIpY) 3PISING Suawsanu; i)
8t'0SY - {v) ss019 - 730,
8v'0sty - Spun; jenitA-
5504 19 33020 YINouL) BnjeA a1 1Y

HE e ‘ e
0Z0T "tg Yo | TTOE "LE YoieiN s1BmOEg
je sy e sy

1ol

slualLLijs2anly

{PaIs AsMUIUTO SSAPUN SUBHIIA U} "SY U SIUNOW |iy)

¥ZOZ ‘1€ Ydse PRpua Jead 3y} 10) SIUIWILELS [BPUBUlY By} O} SBt0N

Q3LINGT 3LVAIYd TULIdYD INVaY

o1



06°Z6T Vet SL'9ET €107 /1L v5'01 95'g TZ0Z "LE Yoejpp e sy
ap'eze 0961 22081 SEEZ 856 99°11T 65°L 0202 “TE yasew 1e sy
anjeA Hooq N
1£98 ve 0z roLy L0'9 g £V 162 TZ0Z "TIE YoJeAl 38 5y
{sg4} . {199} {06'0) - - {re0) sjesodsi
sovr 9g°8 6812 9t 04T 85T T 1eaA 3y) Jo volieldaidag
156y 8771 9292 19'€ DS°E 50°C 18'T 0202 'TE Y42y e sy
{se0) - {sg°0) - . - - s|esodsig
B9'ZE 16°L 87LT FATA Y44 PE'T TZ'T 1eah ayl Joj uontepaidag
8T'LT LEY ££°6 60'T 80T L0 09'0 asuejeq Jujuadp
FUSUIERI] pue UohHepaigsg
6L BE'ZE 6L'EBT 0Z'9Z BE'ET L6'ET e 1Z0Z 'IE YMe I8 SY
{s1'61) - {ze'21) {06°0} - - {0l sjesodsig
BE'92 050 L1'5T v1'0 DE'D 9z'0 100 SUORIPPY
L6°TLZ 88°IE vS'9LT 96'9T BO'ET TLET 08's 0207 ‘TE YsRlA 38 sy
(£8') . (g81) - - - - sjesodsig
09'78 £7'B €265 SE9 vTr ETZ ZL0 sUoIppY
02'T6T SKEe ¥9'8I1 19°0Z ] 85'TT 806 6T0Z ‘10 {tidy 1e 5y
H501g $8015

_muo._. 133lid jasse suoheqiEisuf H:QEQSUN a2 mc._snxm SASIWIDLd I Siendde,
g Jandwo? Nod 1821419313 h o puUE aJnypuIng ! d RUHO tmonded

wuawdmba pue juejd ‘Alisdold

{P2)01S 25IAUALI0 SEIJUD SUBHIAL Ul “SY U} STUNOWD [y}
TZOZ '1E Y2Jey pRpus JedA 243 Joj SIUIAlels [BIJURULY 94} O} 5330N

QILINIT ILIVARID TYLIDYD INVAY

17



ADARNI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financia! Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amounts in Rs. in Mitlions unless atherwise stated)

12 Other intangible assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross Block

As at April 01, 2019 81.96 81.96
Additions 40,12 40,12
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2020 122.08 122.08
Additions during the year 39.48 39.48
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2021 161.56 161,56
Amortization and impairment;

Opening balance 3.62 3.62
Amaortisation for the year 11.29 11.29
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2020 14951 14.51
Amortisation for the year 12.89 12.89
Disposals . .
As at March 31, 2021 27,80 1780
|Net book vatue

As at March 31, 2020 107.17 107.17
As at March 33, 2021 133.76 133.76
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Millions unless atherwise stoted)

Other financial assets
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Security Deposits 1048 941
Excess Interest Spread {E1S) Receivables 121.81 -
Cther receivables from related parties 51.36 41.53
Others 0.96 1.02
Total 184.61 51.86
Other non-financial assets

. As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2021 ftarch 31, 2020
Prepaid expenses 15.25 18.04
GST input credit 13.84 1.47
Others 0.99 3.56
Total 30.08 23.07

T
7 Bhanide

-



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Milllans unless otherwise stoted)

15 Deferred tax

The major components of deferred tax {liabilities) arising on account of timing differences are as folfows:

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Net balance as at | Recognised In profit Recognised Net baiance as at
April 01, 2020 or loss in QC| March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets
impairment loss on financial assets 3241 9.33 - 4174
EIR impact on financial insteurnents 8.48 {2.80} - 5.68
impact of Leases 2.93 1.30 B 423
Retirermnent benefit plans 6.15 2.02 0.08 8.26
Carried forward losses - - - -
Unused tax credits (MAT credit) 5.40 {5.40) -
{a) 55.38 4.45 0.03 5991
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books 5.65 3.43 - 9.08
of accounts and income tax
EIR impact on borrowings 304 {2.35} - 0.59
Impact of direct assighment transactions 30.66 - 30.66
Net fair value gain on investment designated through FYTPL 013 [0.13) - -
{B} 8.82 3161 . 40,43
Deferred tax assets {net) {A-B}] 45.56 {21.16)] 0.08 | 19.98
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Net balance as at | Recognised in profit Racognised Net balance ag at
Aprif 01, 2019 or less in OCI March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets
Impairment loss on financial assets 2950 291 - 3241
£1R impact on financial instruments 6.45 2.03 - B.48
Impact of Leases 0.56 2.37 - 293
Retirement benefit plans 458 3.83 (2.25} 6.1G
Carried forward losses 9.35 {5.35) - -
Unused tax credits 4.00 1.40 - 5.90
£a} 54.44 3.19 {2.25} 55.38
Deferred tax liabilities
Differente between written down value of fixed assets as per the books 4.43 117 - 5.65
of accounts and income tax
EIR impact on borrowings 294 0.10 - 3.04
Net fair value gain on investment designated through FYTPL - 0.13 - 0.13
{Bl 7.42 1.40 - 8.82
Deferred tax assets {net} (A-BY[ 4702 1.79 | {2.25)} 46.56




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al gmaunts in Rs. in Miflions unfess otherwise stated)

16 Trade Payable

" Asat As at
Particulars
March 33, 2021 March 31,2020
Trade payahles
{ij total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smak enterprises* -
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 71.54 48.44
71.34 48.44
Other Payabies
{#) total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and smali enterprises - -
{4} totai outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small
enterprises 19.07 16.62
19.07 16.62
Total 91.01 65.06

* Based on and to the extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act) and relied upon by the auditors, the relevant particulars as at the year-end are furnished below:

As at As at
Warch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Principat amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end {since paid}* - .
interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above armount as at the
year end -
Payment made Lo suppliers {other than interest} beyond the appointed day, dusing the
yaar - -
Interest paid to suppliers undar MSMED Act (other than saction 16} - ) -
Inkerest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (section 16) ' -
Interest due and payable ta suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made B -
Intesest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act - -

Particulars




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIM{TED

Notes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Al amaunts in Ks. in Miifions unless othenyise stoted}

17 Debt securities

As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Redeemable non-convertible debentures - Secured
Privately piaced 2,516.71 984.52
Total 2,516.7% 984.52
Debt Securities in India 351671 984.52
Debt Securities outside India - -
Total 2,516,771 984.52
a. Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:
As at March 31, 2021
Particutars Rate of interest Maturity Amount
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 1 7.75% instalment on 21 1,000.00
January 2022
Repayable in single
Privataly placed non-convertible debentures - 2 B.15% instalment on 18 May 1,000.00
2032
Repayahle in singte
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 3 3.50% instalment on 29 June 500.00
2023
2,500.08
Add: Interest accrued and effactive interest rate amortisation 15,75
L1671
As at Macch 31, 2020
Particulars Rate of interest Baturity Amount
Rapayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - Tranche 1 9.75% instaiment on 31 480.00
December 2020
Renayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - Tranche 2 9.75% instaiment on 26 500.00
February 2021
980,00
Add: interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation 452
984,52

t. Nature of Security :

Redeemable non-convertinle debentures which have been privately placed are secured by hypothecation of Loan Receivables & investment Receivables of the

company to the extent of 1.2x times.




ADAN; CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Aif armounts in R, in Millians unfess otherwise stated)

18 Borrowings (other than debt securities}

As at As a3t
Particulars Miarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Arportised cost Amortised cost

Secured
Term foans

- from banks 6,783.80 B,002.15

- from fnandai institutions 492 86 1.304.80
Unsecured
Term loans

- from financial institutions .39 34,98
Loans repayable on demand

- from related parties - 15041
Total 7,284.05 7.492.34
Borrowings in india 7,284.05 1,492.34
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 1,284.05 7,492.34

a. Maturity prafile and rate of interest of borrowings from banks and other parties are set cut befow:

As ot March 31, 2021

Particulars Rate of int: Maturity
Upto 12 months 12 -36 manths 36 - 48 months Total
Term Loans from banks - Sacuzed 6.21% to 10.2% 2,634.55 3.128.89 1,075.86 6,839.30
Term Loans from financial institutions - Secured 10.00% o 11.25% 250.63 231.17 - 491.80
Term Loans from other parties - Unsecured 9.48% 4.66 .73 - 7.39
7,338.49
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate arnortisation {54.24)
7,284.05
As at March 31, 2020
{particulars Rate of interest Maturity
Upto 17 months 12 -36 months 36 - 48 months Totat
Term Loans from banks - Secuced 9,10% to 11508 2,459.51 3,393.42 142.86 5,995.79
Term Loans from financia! Institutions - Secured 11.25% to 11.50% 485.35 814,32 - 1,298.67
‘Term Loans from other parties - Unserured 9.00% 27.60 7.38 . 2498
1p3ns repayable on Demand from refated parties - 8.00%
Unsecured 150.00 - - 150.00
7,480.44
Add: Interest accrued and eMfective Interest rate amortisation 11.90
7,492.34
b. Nature of Security :

Term foans from banks are secured by hypathecation of Loan Receivables & fnvestment Receivables of the company.,

c. The borrowings have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Alse the Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrgwings and interest,
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ADANi CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Finandal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts In Rs. in Mifliens unless otherwise stated)

Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2020
Lease Liability 147.64 153.85
Employee benefits payable 1.43 1.22
Other Payabies §2.95 23.61
Tatal 232.02 178.68
Provisions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2020
Provision far emplayee benefits
Gratuity {Refer Note 34) 11.84 7.62
Performance Linked Incentive 13.26 -
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 34) 2096 14.55
Total 46.06 2217
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory dues payable 11.0% 15.49
Revenue received in advance 138 0.44
Total 12.47 15.93




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All omounts in Rs. in Millions unfess otherwise stated)

22 Equity share capital

Ags at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised Capitat
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 20,000,000 200.00 20,000,000 200.00
24,000,600 200.00 20,000,000 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 17,299,996 173,00 17,299,936 173.00
17,299,996 173.00 17,299,996 173.00
A. Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 17,299,996 173.00 17,299,996 173.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 17,299,536 173.00 17,299,996 173.00

Notes:

A. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only ane class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid up. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The company detlares and pays dividend in indian Rupees. The dividend if and when proposed by the Board of Directors
will be subject to the approvai of shareholders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of intesim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of alt preferential amaunts, ¥ any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B. Shares held by the hofding company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars .
No. of sharas heid % Holding No. of shares held % Holding

Holding Company
Adani Finserve Private Limited 17,299,995 99.99% 17,299,995 99.99%

17,299,995 99.99% 17,299,995 99.99%

C. Details of sharehalder{s) holding more than 5% of equity shares in the company :

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Name of shareholder
Ma. of shares hald % Holding No. of shares held % Holding

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Halding Company

Adani Finserve Private Limited 17,299,995 $59.99% 17,299,995 99.99%

Totat 17,289,995 99,99% 17,299,995 99,99%

As per the recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/membars and other declarations received from sharehoiders
regarding beneficiat interest, the above shareholding reprasents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. :
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Other equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Securities premium reserve 3,128.76 3,128.76
Share hased payment Reserve 37.14 -
Special Resarve under section 45-1C of the Reserve 51.90 19.35
Bank of india Act, 1934

Retained earnings 111.53 {18.46)
Total 3,329.33 3,129.65

A. Nature and purpose of reserve

a. Securities premium reserve

The securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can
be utilised only for limited purpose such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with provision of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Share based payment Reserve

The Company has stack option scheme under which the eligible employees and key management personnel
can exercise the stock options granted and vested in them. On such exercise of the stock optians the
employees will be allotted equity shares of the Company. The share-based payment reserve is used to
recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments.

c. Statutory reserve
Reserve created under 45-1C{1} in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of
its net profit every year as disclased in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

d. Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for
distribution to shareholders.
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8. Movement in Other equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
I. Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 3,128.76 3,128.76
Add : Premiumn received on issue of securities - -
Less: Share issue expenses - .
Total 3,128.76 3,128.76
il. Share based payment reserve
Opening balance - -
Add: During the year 37.14 -
Total 3714 -
1it. Special Reserve undar section 45-IC of the Reserve
Bank of india Act, 1934
Opening balance 19.35 16.90
Add : Additions during the year 32.55 245
Total 51.890 19.35
V. Impairment Reserve
Opening balance - -
Add : Additions during the year - -
Total - -
V. Retained earnings
Opening balance {18.46) {34.08)
Add : Profit for the year 162.77 12.25
Add : Other comprehensive income {0.23) 5.82
Amount availatile for appropriation 144.08 {16.01)
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to Special Reserve ufs 45-IC of the Reserve {32.55) {2.45)
Bank of india Act, 1934
Total 11153 {18.46)
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Interest income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars On financial assets On financlal assets
measured at amortised | measured at amortised
cost cost
interest an toans 1,680.91 1,083.65
interest income from investments - 112.B6
interesi on fixed deposits 25.04 0.63
Other Interest Income 50.95 45.97
Total 1,756.90 1,243.11
Fees and commission income
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advisory Fees - 37.50
Tota! - 37.50
Net gain/ {loss) on fair value changes
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net gain/ {less} on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss
-On trading portfolio
~lnvestments 15.39 7.72
Total 15.39 7.72
Fair value changes
-Realised 15.39 7.24
-Unrealised - 0.48
15.34 7.72
Other income
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Miscellaneows Income 7.51 1.83
Total 7.51 1.83
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Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars On financial Habilities | On financial Fiabilities
measured at amortised | measured at amortised
cost cost

Interest on borrowings £40.56 454.04
Interest on Debentures 191,58 13.38
Interest on lease lability 15.08 120
Other Finance Cost 3.68 0.34
Tatal 850.90 479.77
Impairment on financial instruments

Year ended Year ended
Particula

r March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
(t) Loans 27.67 55.95
{ii} tnvestrnents - {12.98)
(iit) Others {0.02) 0.05
Total 27.65 43.02
Employee benefits expenses

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

tviarch 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Salaries and wages 460.06 495.57
Contribution to provident and other funds 30.01 30.27
Share based payment to employees 30,39 -
Staff welfare expenses 0.68 251
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 34) 4.72 8.55
Leave encashment 9.57 7.08
Total §35.43 543.98
" Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Dapreciation on Praperty, Plant and Equipments 44.65 32.68
Amortisation on intangible assets 12.89 11.29
57.54 43.97
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32 Other expenses
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent 18.03 18.19
Communication expenses 14.12 14.78
Travelling and conveyance 16.35 28.04
Miscellaneous expenses 1.43 2,02
Bank Charges 1.45 0.88
Loan Write Off 1,82 0.11
Cash Collection Expenses 2.85 0.11
File Storage Expenses 1.75 -
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 1.31 -
Mambership & Subscription 0.11 0.24
Security Expenses 154 2.27
Branch Setup Expenses 0.17 0.74
Credit information Costs 3.67 1.63
Efectricity charges 5.64 5.65
IT Software Licensa Costs 79.23 31.07
thsurance expensas 11.10 5.38
tegal and professional fees 71.49 5101
Loss on sale of repossessed assets 17.57 4.14
Office Expenses 2.90 2.88
Office Maintenance Expenses 9.13 7.21
Printing and stationery 351 9.48
Payment to auditors (Refer Note 32.1} 3.33 1.78
Rates and taxes 201 3.71
Recruitment Expenses 0.65 213
Repairs and maintenance D.66 0.37
Marketing Expenses 211 1.75
Racovery of shared cost from feliow subsidiary {Refer Note 32.2} (39.61) (35.61)
Tatal 234.34 159.96
32.1 Payment to the auditors:
pacticulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As Auditor

Statutory audit of Company a2 1.74

Other Fees 0.17 -

Towards reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.04
Total 3.33 1.78

32.2 HRecovery of shared cost from fellow subsidiary:
Adani Capital Private Umited {ACPL} incurs expenditure fike rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itsetf
and its fellow subsidiaries including Adani Housing Finance Private Limited {AHFPL). This cost s¢ expended is recovered by ACPL
based on the actual expenditure incurred, the number of employees and the time spent by employees of feflow subsidiaries etc.
33 Corparate Social responsibility

During the year, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 {The Act’} with respect to Corporate Sacial Responsibitity
were not appiicable to the Company as the Company did not meet any of the three criteria mentioned in the Act
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34 Employea Benefits

a. Defined contribution plan - provident funds

In aceordance with Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellanesus Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitied to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which, both the empfoyee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recagnized provident fund administered
by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount.

The Company recognised Rs. 30.01 Miltion (PY: Rs 30.27 Million] for year ended March 31, 2021, for pravident fund and ather contributions in the Statement of profit and loss.

b. Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Paymeat of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing Jump-sum gratuity benefits
expressed in terms of final monthiy salary and year of service, covering al! employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested empioyees at reticement or termination of
employment in accerdance with the rules faid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The most recent actuarial valuation pertaining to present value of the defined benefit obligation (DAO) for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2021. The present value of the
defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the acwarial vaiuation obiained in this respect, the fallowing table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the ameunts recognised in the Company's financial statements

as at balance sheet date:

Particulars As at As at
March 33, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Present value of ohligation (A} 11.84 7.62
Fair Value of plan assets (B} - -
Present value of obligation {A- B} 11.84 7.62
Mot deficit / (assets} are analysed as:
liabilittas - {Refer nate 20} 11,84 7.62

Movement in net defined banefit (assat} Hability

The foliowing table shows a reconcifiation from the opening balances to the dosing balances for net defined beneft {asset) liability and its components:

Particutars Defined Benefit Obtigation Fair Value of plan assets Net defined benefit {asset) liability
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening balance 7.62 7.14 “ - .62 1.14
Current service cost 4,26 B.O1 - - 4.26 2801
Interest cost {income) 0.46 0.54 - - 0.46 0.54
Benefits Paid (0.01} - - - {0.01) -
Liahility Transfer in 0.00 - - - 0.c0 -
Liability Transfer (Out} {0.60) “ n - {0.80) -
11.53 15 69 - - 1153 15.69
Other comprehensive intome
Remeasurement loss (gain):
Actuarial lass {gain) arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - (8.79) - - - (8.79)
Experience variance {0.53) {1.55}) - - (0.53) {1.55)
Change in Financial assumptions 0.84 2.27 - - Q.84 227
0.31 {£.07) - - 0.31 8.0}
Ciosing halance 11,84 7.62 - . 1184 7.62
jRepresented by
Net defined lability 13.84 7.62
11.84 1.62
: //7}

! L0
I‘f) WO LLY
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Components of defined benefit plan cast:

Particulars Far the year For the yaar
ended ended
Marech 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
[Recognised in statement of proflt ar toss
Current service cost 1.26 801
Interest cost/ {income) {nay) 0.46 0.54
Total 4,72 8.55%
Racognised in other comprehensive income
Qther comprehensive Incame
Actuarial loss (gain} arising from:

Charge in demographi¢ assumptions - {8.79)

Experience variance {0.53) {1.55)

Change in Finangial assumptions 0.84 227
Total 031 {8.07}
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:
farticulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Discount rate 5.30% 6.70%
Salary growth rate B.00% B.00%
Withdrawalfatteition rate {based on categories} 25.10% 25.10%
100% of IALM 100% of IALM

Maortality rate 2012-14 2012-14
Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 25.83 years 26.59 years

Notes:

o} The discount rate indicated obove ceflects the estimated timing and currency of beneflt poymentis. It is based an the yields / rates avoifable on appliceble bonds os an the current
valuation date.

b} The solory growth rate indicated abuve is the Company's best estimate af an increose in solary of the employees in future years, determined cansidering the generof trend in inflation,
seniority, promotions, past experience and ather relevont foctars such as demond and supply in employment marhet, ez

¢} Attritien rate Indicated above represents the Company's best estimare of employee turnover in future fofher than on occount of retirement, death ar disablement) determined
cansidering various factars such as noture of business, retentian policy, industry foctars, past experience, gte.

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonabfy possible changes at the reporting date to one of the refevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
increase Detrease Increase Decrease

Salary Growth Rate {+/- 1%) 12.48 11.24 8.05 7.20
{% change compared to base due to sensitiviog 5.40% -5.10% 5.80% -5.50%
Discount Rate (+/- 1%) 1123 1251 130 8.07
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.20% 5.60% -5.50% 6.00%
Attrition Rate {+/- 50% of attrition rates) 8.79 16.46 511 1113
{% change compared to base due o sensilivity) -25.80% 32.00% -32.90% 46.20%
Mortality Rate {-/+ 10% of mortality rates) 1184 11.84 162 .82
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The Sensitivity is perfarmed on the DBQ at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant, There is na ¢hange in the method of
valuation for the prior period.
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Maturity profile of Delined Benefit Obligation

Asat As at

Expetted cash flows over the naxt {valued on undiscounted basis): March31, 2021 | Waarch 31, 2020
1 years 0.46 0.03
210 5 years 7.95 5.21
6 to 10 years 5.28 4.47
More than 10 Years 2.43 1.90
Experiente adjustments
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deflned Benefit Obligations 11.84 7.62
Fair value of plan assets - -
Asset/{liability} recagnized in the balance sheet 1184 7.62
€xperience adjustmant on plan fiabilities (0,53} {1.55}
¢. Compensated absences:
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the batance sheet date using projected unit ceedit method based on actuarial valuation.
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 3021 | Parch 31, 2020
Present value of unfunded gbligation 20.96 14.55
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 641 522
Assumption
Discount Rate 5.30% 6.70%
Satary growth rate 8.00% B.00%
Withdrawal/atirition rate [based on categories) 25.10% 25.10%
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35 Tax expense

{a} Amounts racognised in profit and foss

Year ended Year ended

Particul
articulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Current tax expense
Current year 11.30 9.00

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 27.16 {1.79)

Tax expense for the year 3846 7.21

{b} Amcunts recognised in other comprehensive income

March 31, 2021
Particulars Before tax Tax {expense) Net of tax
ltems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
{a} Remeasurements of defined benefit (tability {asset) {0.31} 0.08 10.23}
(0.31} G4.08 (0.23}
March 31, 2020
Particulars Before tax Tax {expense} Net of tax
ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability {asset) 8.07 (2.25) 5.82
8.07 {2.25) 5.82
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
particutars Year ended Year ended
March 32, 2021 | March 31, 2020
iProfit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 2031.23 19.46
Applicable income tax rate (%) 25.17% 27.82%
Tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate 50.64 5.41
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to
reported income tax expense:
Utilisation of braught forward losses {9.30) -
Unused tax credits (MAT Credit} {5.40) 1.40
Deductior under section 35 D (0.03} -
Deduction under section 36 {1} {viif) {0.59} -
Changes in Fair Value 0.12 -
Other adjustments 3.02 0.40
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 38.45 7.21
Effective Tax Rate 15.11% 37.07%

Note: The Company has elected 1o exercise the option permitted under section 115844 of the income Tax Act, 1961 as intraduced by the Taxation Laws
{Amendment} Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for Income Tax for the year ended March 31, 2021 and re-
measured its Deferred tax assets/liability basis the rate prescribed in the aforesaid section and recognised the effect of change by revising the annhual
effective income tax rate.
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36 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Difuted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all
difutive potentiai equity shares.

) Year ended March Year ended
Particulars
31,2021 March 31, 2020

Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 162.77 12.25
Weighted average number of shares {Basic} - B 17.30 17.30
Dilutive Impact* 0.02 -
Woeighted average number of shares {Diluted} - C 17.32 17.30
Basic earnings per share {in rupees) {A/B) 941 0.71
Diluted earnings per share {in rupees) {(A/C) 9,40 0.71

* There are employee share options outstanding that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share ond the
effect of the same hos been included in the calculation of diluted earnings per shore.
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Contingent liabilities 2nd commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitars the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of externai legal counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a Hability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capabie of being estimated and discloses such matters in
its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure
in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financiai position
and results of operatians.

a. Contingent Liability
There are no contingent Habilities as at 31 March 2021 as well as at 31 March 2020.

b. Cormmitments

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particular
2021 2020
Commitment in respect of:
Capitai expenditure 118.28 7.08
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed 775.83 750.74

For the loans pertaining to Farm Equipment and Commercial Vehicle business amounting to Rs. 1,088.84 Million {PY - Rs. 713.14 Miilion}
as at March 31, 2021, the Management is in the process of colfection of Registration Certificate Book {RC Book) from the customers.

In case of Vehicle Loans for Farm Equipment business amounting to Rs. 11.72 Million (PY - Rs. 64.54 Million) as at March 31, 2021, first
default loss guarantee is provided by equipment manufacturer to the extent of S0%

in respect of secured loans for MSME business amounting to Rs. 32.29 Million {PY - Rs. 27.74 Million} disbursed, the Company is in the
process of perfecting the security.

Receivable / Payable balance in foreign currency ~ Rs. Nil {PY — Rs. Nil}. The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency
exposure as on 31st March 2021 {PY - Nii)

Segment information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment t.e. lending, since the nature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and return
profiles hence they are coflectively operating under a single segment. The Company operates in a single geographical segment l.e.
domestic. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments, as required by the Ind 45 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’.

Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financiaf statements,
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44 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

. As at Cash Fiows Changes in Fair Others As at
Particulars
April 1, 2020 {net) Value {net} March 31, 2021
Debt securities 984.52 1,520.00 - 12.19 2,516,71
Borrowing other than debt securities 7,492.35 {141.95} - {66.35) 7,284.05
8,476.87 1,378.05 B {54.16} 9,800.76
. As at Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at
Particulars
April 1, 2019 {net} Value {net} March 31, 2020
Debt securities - 980.00 - 4,52 984,52
Borrowing other than debt securities 2,307.14 5,174.28 - 10.93 7,492.35
2,307.14 6,154.28 - 15.45 8,476.87

* Others column includes the effect of acerued but not poid interest an borrawings, amortisation of processing fees, ete.
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45 Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and Habilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With regard to loans
and advances to customers, the company vses the same basis of expected repayment behavigur as used for estimating the EiR.

As at March 31,2021 . -As at March 31, 2620
Particulars Within 12 CAfteraz Within 12 After 12 Sota RN
- months months . months menths -
ASSETS
Financiat assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,431.53 1,431.53 992.86 - 592.86
Receivables
{1} Trade receivables 1.95 - 1.95 3.09 - 3.08

Loans 5,066.81 6,585.85 11,652.66 4,372.28 5,724.04 10,096.32
Investments . - . 450.48 - 450.48
Other Financial assets 119.41 65.20 184.61 42.55 9.41 51.96
Sub tatat 6,619.70 6,651.05 13,270.75 5,861.26 5,733.45 11,594.71
Non-financiaf assets
Current Tax assets (Net} - 37.59 37.59 - 58.50 58.50
Deferred Tax assets {Net) 19.48 19,48 - 46556 46,56
Property, plant and equipment - 192.90 152.50 . 222.46 222.46
Intangible assets under development - 0.09 0.08 8.88 8.8d
Other intangible assets - 133,76 133.76 - 107.17 107.17
Cther non-fisancial assets 30.08 - 30.08 23.07 - 23,07
Subi total 30.08 383.82 413,80 23.07 443,57 466,64
Total assets €,649.78 7,034.87 13,684.65 5,884.33 6,177.02 12,061.35
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABIUITIES
Financiat liabilities
Payables
{}) Trade payables

(i) totat outstanging dues of creditors of micra - - - - - .

entarpeises and smali enterprises

{it) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 71.94 - 71.94 48.44 - 48.44

micra enterprises and smali enterprises
(i1} Other payables

{i} total outstanding dues of creditors of micro - - - - - -

enterprises and small enterprises

{ii) total outstanding dues of creditars other than 19.07 - 15.07 773 - 7.73

micro eaterprises and smatl enterprises
Debt securities 1,021.33 1,495.37 2,516.71 984 .52 " 9B4.52
Barrowings {Other than Debt Securities} 2,887.34 4,386.70 7.284.05 3,154.36 4,337.98 7,492.34
Gither Financlal liabilities 99.73 13329 232.02 35.38 143.31 178.69
Sub total 4,099.43 6,024.37 10,123.79 4,230.43 4,481.29 8,711.72
Non-Financial liabitities
Provisions 21.52 24.54 45.06 5.90 16.27 22.17
Other non-financial fiabilities 12.47 - 12.47 24,81 B 24.81
Sub total 33.99 24.54 58.53 30.71 16.27 46.98
Total liahilities 4,133.41 6,048.91 10,182.32 4,261.14 4,497.56 8,758.70
Mot Assets / {Liabilities] (A - B} 2,516.37 985.97 3,502.33 1,623.19 1,679.46 3,302.65
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46 Related Party Disclosure

2. Name of retated party and nature of relationship:

Holding company

Fellow subsidiary company

Directly / indirectly controls the holding company
Subrsidiary of ultimate holding company

Enterprise under common conteo!

Key management personnel

Relative of key management personnel

Name of Related Partigs by whom control is exercised

Adani Finserve Private Limited

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited
Adani Special Situations Private timited

Adani Properties Private Limited

Adani infrastructure Management Services Limited

Adani Etectricity Mumbat Umited
Adani Port and SEZ Limited

Mr. Sagar R. Adani {Director)

Mr. Gaurav Gupta (Managing Director & CEQ - w.e.f. 31st March 2021}

M. Viral Shah (CFO - w.e.f. Sth March 2021}

Mr. Bhavik Shah {Company Secretary - w.e.f. 12th March 2020}

Mrs, Anjadi Gupta

b. Transaction with related pacties:

Particulary

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Lurrent aceount transactions
Inter-corporate deposits recefved:
Adanl Finserve Private Limited
Adani Electricity Mumbat Limited

inter-corporate deposits repaid:
Adani Finserve Private Limited
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limitad

interest on inter-corporate deposits paid:
Adani Finserve Private Limited
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Reimbursement of enpenses:

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited - Receivable
Adani Finserve Pivate Limited - Reimbursement of
share based payment ta emgloyees - Receivables

Adani Finserve Pivate Uimited - Transfer of Employees
Graguity fiability of erstwhile employee of company -
Payable

Adani Finserve Pivate Limited - Payabte

Advisory fees received:
Adani Port and SEZ Limitad

Rant paid;

Mr. Gaurav Qupta

#irs. Anjali Gupta

Adani Properties Private Limited

Remuneration:
Mr. Viral Shah (w.e.f Sth March 2021}
Mr. Bhavik Shah [w.e.f 12th March 2020}
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¢t. Trapsactions outstanding at year end

tParticulars As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

interest payable on deposits:
Adani Finserve Private Limited -

Amount Receivable:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 45,15
Adani Finserve Private Limited

Share Based Payment to Employees 5,75

Amount Payable:

Adani Finserve Private Limited
inter-corporate deposits -
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.714
Transfer of Employees Gratuity Hability 0.80

0.46

4153

150.00

Diagrammatic representation of group structure

Adani Properties Private Limited

Adani Ventures LLP
]

v
-~ Adani Finserve Private Limited *———

Y

Adani HousIng Finance Private Limited Adan] Capital Private Limited »

Green Light Advisors LLP

Adani Special Situations Private Limitg

faid

’
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All mounts in Rs. in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company has entered into lease contracts for premises at various locations. Leases of premises generally have lease terms between 5 to
9 years. The Company's obfigations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the Jeased assets.

The Company also has certain leases of premises which are cancelfable in nature and leases for printers with lease term of 12 months or lass
for which the Company appiies the ‘short-term lease’ and fease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions.

a. Carrying amounts of lease labilities (included under "Other Financial Liabilities’} and the movements during the perlod:

Particutars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
As at Ist Aprii 153.84 108.40
Additlons 24,78 57.07
Disposals {12.77} {1.64)
Accretion of interest 1508 12.01
Payments {23.29) {22.00}
As 2t 31st March 147.64 153.84

b. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as under;

Partlcutars Within 12 After 12 manths Total
months

As at March 31, 2021 20.28 127.36 147,64
As at March 31, 2020 17.18 136.67 153.85
€. Amounts recognised in statement of profit orloss:

Particuiars As at March 31, 2021 § As at March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 27.39 17.28
Interest expanse on lease liabilities 15.08 12.01
Expense relating to short-term teases and low value items 18.03 18.19
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 60.50 47.48

d. Cash flows and additions to assets [ liabilities:

The Campany had total cash outflows for feases of Rs. 51,32 Milfien for the year ended March 31, 2021 (PY - Rs. 40.19 Million}. The Company
also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of Rs. 25.17 Miltion for the year ended March 31, 2021 {PY - Rs. 53.73 Million) and Jease
liabllities of Rs, 24,78 Million for the year ended March 31, 2021 {PY - Rs. 57,07 Million}.

e. Future Commitments;

Particulars ) As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Future undiscounted fease payments for which the leases have not yet commenced il Nif

f. Extension / Termination Options:

Some of the leases contain extension and termination options, Such options are taken into account in the determination of the lease term
only if extension or non-termination can be assumed with reasonable certainty. On this basis, there were no such amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021,

E. The company has applied the practical expedient to alt rent concessions as it meets the conditions mentioned in paragraph 46A & 46E of
Ind AS 116 - 'Leases’ and the amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or loss for the period ended March 31, 2021 to reflect changes in
lease payments that arise from rent concessions is Rs. 1.26 millions.
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48 Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements from its regulators ke, Reserve Bank of {ndia {RBI} and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order
to suppart its business and to maximise sharehelder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. The capital management policy is under constant review by the
Board.

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD, 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016
issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Capital Funds
Net owned funds {Tier { capitai) 3,211.92 3,140.04
Tier Il capital 77.58 130.30
Tatat capital funds 3,289.50 3,270.34
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 12,779.62 11,747.18
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets exposuras:
Tier | capital 25.13% 26.73%
Tier I capital 0.61% 1.11%
Total capital Funds 25.74% 27.84%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including current year's profit
less accrued dividends. Certain adjustments are made to ind AS — hased results and reserves, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of india, The

other component of regutatory capital is Tier l Capital, which includes subordinated debt.

The Company is meeting the capitai adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of india {RBI}.




49

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 32, 2021
{All omounts in Rs, In Millions uniess otherwise stated)

Fair Value Measurement
A. Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly chservable or estimated using a valuation technigue. I order to show how fair values have heen
derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. Refer Note 5.10 - Determination of Fair
Value(Accounting policy Note) for mare details on fair vatue hierarchy.

B. Valuation gavernance framewaork

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to
ensure appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. Ali new product initiatives {including their valuation
methodologies} are subject to approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair vaiues are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent
price determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater
weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is
also responsible for establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting
standards,

C. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2021

e e e e Rermmererr.

Particulars .~ " o Leveil - Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis

Investments
Units of Mutual Funds - - - .

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis

Invastments
Units of Mutual Funds 450.48 - - 450.48

450.48 - - 450.48

D. Valuation Methodolagies of Financdial Instruments measured at fair value

Units of Mutual Funds

Units held in mutual funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or
other restrictions, if any. Such instruments are classified as Level 1.




ADANt CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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49 Fair Value Measurement (contd...}

E. Fair value of financial instrument not measured at fair value

The table below is a compazisan, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair
vaiue in the financial statements, This table d oes not inciude the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financiaf liabilities.

As at March 31, 2021

; ) . Fair Value
particulal Carrying Value Total

Heutar Ving level 1 Lowef 2 tevel 3 o
Financial Assots
Cash and cash equivalents 1,431.53 1,431.53 . - 1,431.53
‘Trade Receivables 1.95 - - 1.95 1.95
Leans 11,652.66 - 11,942.16 11,942.16
Other financial assets 1B4.61 - 184.61 184.61
Tatal Financial Assets 13,270.75 1,431.53 - 12,128.72 13,560.25
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 91.01 " " 91.01 51.01
Debt Securities 2,516.7% - - 2516.71 2,516.71
Borrowings 7,284.05 - - 7,285,058 1,284.05
Gther Financial Liabilities 232.02 - - 232,02 232.02
‘Tatal Financiat liabtlitles 10,123.79 - - 10,123.79 10,123.79
As at March 31, 2020
partiealar PR - Egit Value b
Particidar Carrying Valu s - Total

rHiesr fying yauie Tleveld Tlevelz o “level 3 ik

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivaleats 592.86 992.86 - - 892.86
Trade Receivables 309 - - 3.09 .09
Loans 10,096.32 - - 10,278.85 10,278.85
Cther financial assets 51.96 - 51.96 51.96
Total Financial Assets 11,144.23 992.86 - 10,333.90 11,326.76
Financial tiabilities
Trade Payables 65.06 - - 65.06 65.06
Debt Securitias 984.52 * - 984.52 984.52
Borrowings 7.452.34 - - 7,492.34 7,492.34
Cther Financial Liabilities 178.68 - - 178.68 178.68
Total Financial iabilities 8,720.60 - - 8,720.60 8,720.60

F. Valuation Methodolagies of Financial instruments not measured at, fair value
Below are the methodologles and assurnptions used to determine faér values for the ahove financiat instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabifities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity {less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable
appraximation of thelr fair vaiue. Such instruments include trade receivables and trade payables and the amounts have been ciassified as Level 3.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair vatues of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using 3 discounted cash flow model based on contractuai cash Rows
using actual or estimated yields and discounting by vields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk.

Except for the above, carrying values of other financial assets / Habilities represents reasonable estimates of fair value.
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Risk Management
Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sells securities
in market, or offers other products or services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall objective is to
manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and
protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:

1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escafation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company ;

2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate ; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

4) Robust underwriting policy

S) Portfolioc Monitoring process

6) Fraud detection and prevention process

The Company strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development
and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks
associated with the varlous business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by independent risk management team,

Qur risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and
scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a result, we follow conservative fending norms.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company’s risk management
framework, The Board, has empowered the Risk Management team, which has an independent Head who is responsible for
developing and monitoting the Company's risk management poficies. On a perigdic basis the Head of Risk appraises the Board on the
overatl risks, recommends change in the processes and policies and takes stock of the overalt portfolio quality and key risk indicators.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and protedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk rmanagement controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal
& credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies
and approving loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and
verifications. Our key business processes are regufarly monitored by the head of our business or operations. Our foan approval and
administration procedures, cotlection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and maximise recoveries.

At all levels of the Company's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that ait
business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-ta-date information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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It is the Company's policy that a menthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant members of the Company in
the utilisation of market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

it is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are
expected to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal
audit findings are important elements of employees' annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical
region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, pofitical or other ¢onditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical focation.

in order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on
maintaining a diversified portfolio. identified concentrations of credit risks are controlfed and managed accordingly.
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Alt amounts in Rs. in Millions uniess otherwise stated)

Employee Stock Option Flan

The Board of Directors took the decision to introduce Adani Employee Stock Option Pian, 2020 {hereinafter calied “ESOP 202G") at the meeting held on June Z8, 2020. The
shareholders approved it at the Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2020. The ptan provides for the issuance of stack options to senior employees. Under the plan,
the Company has issued two series of aptians with ditferent vesting period. Under both the series, the options vest not earlier than 1 year and not later than 4 years from the

date of the Grant .

The detalls of the ESOP 2020 as on March 31, 2021 are :

: Particlulars Serfes } ] Seres i
Options approved to be issyed a5 ESOPs 864,999
Date of Grant October 3, 2020
Options granted 334,645 [ 226,471
Methad of Sertlement Equity
The details of the ESOP as on March 31, 2020 are ;
' Particlulars Series | i © Seresl
Optigns approved to be issued as ESQPs Nit
Date of Grant Mot Applicabile
Options granted Not Applicable
Meathod of Settlement Not, Applicable
a, Reconciliation of Options
- As at March 31,2021 .. . - o -
i L Series] s IR
. Paticulars . Shares arising | Ve AVE U Sharearsing | T avE
from options | TP | g oy | SxETE e
. NP TR R {INRY AT FINR}
Options Quistanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Optlons Granted 334,645 191 226,471 191
Options Exercised - - -
Opticns Reinstated - - - -
Optiens Lapsed (75,201) 191 {37,508} 151
Options Forfeited - - - -
Options Qutstanding at the end of the year 159,444 131 188,562 151
: . AsatMarch3:,2020 0.0
. Series) - O s L1
_Pammhm Shares arising | .- Wh.ave. . Sharas arising
T Y axarcise price | R
from Opticns e DT from Options |
e " e TINE) )
Options Gutstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Options Granted - - - -
Options Exercised - - - -
Options Reinstated - - -
Options Lapsed - -
Ciptians Forfeited - - - -
Options Outstanding at the end of the year ~ - - -
b. Batance outstanding at the end of the year are as follows -
Particutars As at March 31, 2021
Nas. - Exercise Price {INR}
Vested Options
Series | - 191
Series (i - 181
uUnvested Options
Serias | 258,444 191
Series il 188,562 191
- As at March 31, 2020 .
Particufars Nos. Exercise Price (INR)
Wested Options
Series | . -
Series it - -
tinvested Options -
Series | e
Series il L . v




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Financiz] Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Alt emounts in Rs. in Millions unless otherwise stated}

¢. Welghted average remaining {ife of tha ESOP outstanding

Particulars As at March 31, 2021
Series | 0.76
Series Il . 1.52
. Particulars “As at March 31, 2020
Series | -
Series I} -

d. Following amount has been recognized as an expense and included in ‘Note 30 - Employee benefit expenses’ apd total carrying amount at the end of tha
parfod.

‘Particutars As at March 33, 2021 -As at March 31, 2020
Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction 30.39 -
Carrying amount at the end of the yaar 37,24 -
e. Fair value of the options granted
; S Series } “Sertes I L
Particulars Vesting Vesting Vesting -4 i Vesting ~Westing
- Year 1 Year 2 Yearl | - ¥ear2 . Year3
Share Price on the date of Grant [INR) 351.95 361.95 361.95 361.95 361.95
Exercise Price {INR) 191.00 151.00 191.00 151.00 191.00
Expectad Volatility (%} 53.22 50.73 53,22 56.73 49.21,
Life of options granted {years) 3.00 3.50 3.00 3.50 4.00
Risk free interest rate (%) 4.86% S.06% 4.86% 5.06% 5.24%
Expected dividend rate (%) 0.00) 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00
Fair value of eptions as per black scholes {INR) 220.05 225.00 220.0% 225.00 230.35

Risk free interest rate

The risk-free interest rate being cansidered for the calculation is the interest rate applicabte for maturity equal to the expected life of the options hased on the zero-yield turve
for Government Secusities.

Expected life of aptions

Time to Maturity / Expected Life of options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be live. The minimum life of a stock eption is the minimum period
before which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum life is the period after which the options cannot be exercised. The expected life of an award of stock optians
shalt take into account the foHowing factars -

i. The expected life must at least include the vesting periad,
iil. The average lengths of time of simitar grants have remained outstanding in the past. If the company does not have a suffidently long history of stock aption granes, the
experience of an appropriately comparable peer group may be taken into consideration.

iii. The expected life of stock options should not be fess than half of the exercise period of the stotk options issued until and untess the same is supported by historical
evidences with respect to stack options issued by the com pany earlier.

Aweighted average of vests has been calcutated to arrive at the value of the options granted.
Expected volatility

Volatifity is a measure of the amaount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to Nuctuate during a period. Since each vest has been considered as a separate grant, we
have cansidered the volatility for periods, corresponding to the expected lives of different vests, prior to the grant date. The Fair value of an aption is very sensitive to this
variable. Higher the volatifity, higher is the Fair value. The rationale being, the more volatife a stock is, the more is its potential to go up {or come down), and the more is the
probability ta gain from the movement in the price. Accordingly, an option to Yuy a highty volatile stock is more valugble than the one to buy a less volatile stock, for the
probability of gaining is lesser in the {atter case,

Expected dividend yield

Expected dividend yield has been calcuiated based on the dividend declared for 1 finandal year prior to the date of grant. The dividend yield has been darived by dividing the
dividend per share by the market price per share on the date of grant.

2

N ‘l{/ ;
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53.1

53.2

53.3

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounes in Rs. in Milfions unless otherwise stated)

RBI Disclosures

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systematically Important Non-Depaosit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve 8ank} Directions, 2016 issued vide
Master Direction DNBR. PD, 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 as amended.

Capital to Risk Asset Ratio {CRAR)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

CRAR {%}

25.74%

17.84%

CRAR - Tier | Capital {%)

25.13%

26,73%

CRAR - Tier i Capital {3%)

0.61%

111%

Amount of subordingted debt raised as Tier - 1} Capital

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt Instruments

Investments

Particulars

As at
March 33, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{a] Value of Investments

(F} Gross value of investments

{a} In India

450.48

{2} Qutstde India

{li} Provisions for Depreaciation

{a) in Indiia

{a} Qutside India

{Ht) Net value of investments

{a) In India

450.48

{a} Outside india

{b} Movements of provisions held towards impairment, on investments

{t] Opening batance

{1298}

{#} Add ; Provisions made during the year

(UI} Less ; Write-off/ Written- back of excess provisions during the year

12.98

{1v} Closing balance

Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement {FRA)} / Interast Rate Swap {IRS}

Particufars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{}) The national principal of swap agreements

(¢} Losses which woutd be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their
cbligations under the agreements

{1H} Coltateral required by the NBFC upon eatering into swaps

{1V} Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps.

(v} The fair value of the swap book
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ADANI| CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Millions unfess atherwise stated)

Exchange Traded interest Rate {IR} Derivative

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{1} Notianal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
undertaken during the year {Instrument wise}

{11} Notional prineipal amount of exchange traded (R derivatives
outstanding (Instrument-wise)

{IH} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
outstanding and not "highly effective” {instrument-wise}

{1V} Mark-ta-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding

and not “highly effective” {instrument-wise)

Disclasures on Risk exposure in derivative.
Qualitative Disclosures

Quantitative Disciosures

Nat Applicable

Particudars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{}) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount)

{11} Marked to Market Positions {1}

{3} Assets

{b} Liability

{11} Credit exposure

{I¥) Unhedged expasure

Securitisation

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

{1} Mo of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions

(i) Total amaunt if securitised assets as per books of the 5PVs
sponsored

{15} Tota! amount of exposure retained by the NBFC towards the MRR as
on date of balance sheet

{a} Off-balance sheet exposure towards credit enhancements

{tr) On batanice sheet exposures towards credit enhancements

{Iv} Amount of exposures to secusitisation transactions other than MRR

{a} Off-bafance sheet exposure towards credit enhancements

{i} Exposure to own securitisations

{it} Exposure to third party securitisations

{b} On balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancements

{i} Exposure to own securitisations

{if} Exposure to third party securitisations




53.5

53.6

53.7

i}

{i5)

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Mates to the Fimancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All omounts in Rs. in Milllons unfess otherwise stoted}

Details of financial assets sofd ta securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction,

Particutars

As at
March 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

{l) MNo. of accaunts

{1) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC /RC

1L Aggregate consideration

{iV} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred
it earlier years

{V} Aggregate gain/loss over net book value

Details of Assignment Transactions undertaken by NBFCs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

No. of accounts

4,243

Aggregate value {net of provision) of accounts assigned

1,112,595

|Aggregate consideration

1,112.95

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
aarlier years

Aggregate gainfloss over net book value

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased f soid

Detalls of non-performing financlal assets purchased:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{(} No. of accounts purchased during the year

{1} Aggregate outstanding

{11} Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year

[V} Aggregate outstanding

Details of non-performing financial assets sold:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{1} No. of accounts soid

{it] Aggregate outstanding

{11} Aggregate consideration received
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ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Afl amuounts in As. in Miliions urless otherwise stoted)

Exposure to Real estate sector

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Category

a) Direct exposure

{i) Residential mortgage:

Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential praperty that is or
will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;

14.42

15.06

{il} Commercial real estate:

Lending sacured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office
bullding, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
wareg house space, hotels, fand acquisitions, development and
construction, etc.} Exposure would also include non-fund based {NFS)
limits;

303.64

564.04

(iii} investment in mortgage backed securities (M85} and other
securitised axposures:

{a} Residential

[b} Commercial real estate

Exposure to Capital Market

Particutars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertibie
debentures and units of equity oriented mutuai funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt; *

(i} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs /i
ESOPs), convertible bands, convertible debentures, and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds;

(it} advances for any other purposes where sharas or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;

(W} advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
coliateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutuat funds i.e. where tha
privnary security other than shares f conventible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity ariented mutual funds *does not fully cover
the advances;

{v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;
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53.14

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{AH amounts in Rs. in AMilliens unless otherwise stoted}

{vi} loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipatian
of raising resources

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

{viii} All exposures to Ventura Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

Taotal Exposure to Capital Markat

* The Company has not made any investrment in equity orientad mutual funds as at the year end

Finanting of Parent Company Product

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
Mareh 31, 2020

Details of financing of parent company products if any

Details of (SGL} / Group Borrower Limit {GBL} exceeded by the Company

The Prescribed exposure limit of credit and investment concentration of single party and single group of parties has nat

exteeded during the year 2020-21 and 2019-20,

tInsecured Advances
As at As at
Particula
aricwias March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amount of unsecured advances given against rights, ficenses, -
authorizations et¢.
Registration from Other Financial Sector Regulators
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Registration from other financial regulator, if any
1. Insurance Regulatory and Development Autharity of india IRDA IRDA
- Registration Number CADB23 CADE28
- Registration Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
- Registration Validity Oecember 30, 2021 December 30, 2021
Penalty
Particulars As at As at
March 11, 2021 March 31, 2020
Penalty if any levied by Regulator
Total

i

e




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes te the Financial Statements for the year endad March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Millians unfess otherwise stated}

53.15 Credit Rating
Particufars As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Nature of borrowing Rating / Outlook Rating / Outlook
CRISIL CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans CRISIL Al CRISILAL+
Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/Stable CRISIL AA-/Stable
Commaercial Paper CRISIL A1+ CRISIL Ad+
Non - Convertible Debentures {Short Term) CRISIL A1+ CRISIL AL+
Non - Convertible Debentures {Long Term} CRISIL AA-/5table -
53.16 Provisions
As at As at
Particufars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. Provisions for deprectation on investment - {12.98}
2. Provisions made towards income tax 11.30 9.00
3. Provisions towards NPAs* 63.80 18.23
3. Provisions for standard assetsi {36.13) 37.72
4. Other provision and contingencies
Gratuity 4.72 8.55
Compensated absence 9.57 7.08
Performance Linked Incentive 13.26 -
Provision for expenses 16.76 14.81
* Represents impairment [oss ellowance on stage 3 loans.
¥ Represents impairment loss alfowance on stage 1 and stage 2 lpans, p
a

X
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notas to the Financial Statements for the year ended Parch 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. In Miflions unfess otherwise stated)

Special Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Statutory Resarve
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginaing of the year
a) Statutory reserve as per Section 45-iC of the Reserve Bank of fndia 19.35 16.80
Act, 1934
b} Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1) (viii} of Income Tax Act, 1361 - -
taken in to accaunt for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
45-1C of the Reserve Bani of ndia Act, 1934
Addition / appropriation [ withdrawals during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india 32.55 245
Act, 1934
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 35(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 196% - -
taken in to account far the purpose of statutory reserve under Saction
45-iC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934
Less:
2 Amount appropriate as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India B -
Act, 1934
b} Amount of withdrawn from special resarve u/fs 36{1) {viii} of Income - -
Tax Act, 1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory raserve
under Saction 45-C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Balance at the end of the year
al Statutory reserve as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of Indiaf 51.80 18.35
Act, 1934
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36{1) {viii} of income Tax Act, 1361 -
taken in Lo account for the purpase of statutory reserve under Section
45-IC of the Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934
Total 51.90 14,35
Note: During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from reserves
Concentration of Public Deposits {for Public Deposit taking / halding NBFCs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 farch 31, 2020
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositars - -
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositars to total deposits of . -
the NBFC
Concentration of Advances
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total Loans to twenty larpest borrowers 1,682.31 1,885.30
Percentage of Loans to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of 14.22% 18.40%
the NBFC
A
:i:},{’f
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amaunts in Rs. in Millians unless otherwise stated}

Concentration of All Exposure {including off - balance sheet exposures}
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1,868,599 1,995,13
Parcantage of exposure to twanty iargest borrowers / customers to 14 83% 14.14%
totat expasure of the NBFC an borrowers / customers,
Concentration of credit impaired ioans
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Total Exposure te top four credit impaired accounts 26.44 12.86
Sector Wise Credit-Impaired Assets urder Ind AS
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. Agricuiture & allied activities 27.85 12.7¢
2. MISME 94.71 5.68
3. Corporate Borrowers 3.83 0.42
4. Services « -
5. Unsecured Personal Loans 3.45 0.46
&, Auto Loans 259.46 17.65
7. Other Parsonal Loans 3.80 8.88
Movement of Credit-impaired Loans under ind AS
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{1} Net impaired loss atlowance to Net loans (%) 0.69% 0.27%
(1) Movement of Credit imaaired loans under Ind-AS {Gross)
{3} Opening Balance 45.83 0.46
{b) Additions during the year 117.37 45.37
{c) Closing balance 163.20 45.83
{IH} Movernent of Nat Impaired loss
{3} Opening Balance 27.16 .04
{h] Additions during the year 53.57 27.12
[¢] Closing batance B0.73 27.16
£1i} Moverent of impairment foss allowance on credit impaired foans
{a) Opening Balance 18.66 0,42
(b} Additions during the year 63.80 18.24
{c} Closing balance 82.46 13.66




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial 5tatements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{all amaounts in Rs. in Mitlions unfess otherwise staled)

53.24 Overseas Assets

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Overseas assets - -
53.25 Off Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored {which are required to be consoiidated as per accounting norms}
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Domestic - -
Qverseas - .
53.26 Customer Complaints
As at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2021 tarch 31, 2020
{3} No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 -
(b} No. of complaints received during the year 175 50
{c] No. of camplaints redressed during the year 176 49
{d} No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - 1
53.27 Adverse remarks
As at As at
P |
articulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Adverse remarks if any given by Regulator - -
53.28 Expenditure in foreign currency
As at As at
P
articulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fareign Currency Transaction 251 -

Receivable and Payable outstanding in foreign currency - -

53.29 Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank} dated September 29, 2016

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amount of Fraud 2.80

Particuiars

53.30 Area of Operations as per RB1 circular DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N®.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated february 17, 2021

Particulars Details
Area ard Country of Operations India
Joint venture partners with regard to joint ventures and gverseas subsidiaries Nii

53.31 Overview of modified and forbome loans:

As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amortised costs of financial agsets madified during the year 15.10 -
Net modification loss -




ADAMNI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rs. in Millians uniess athenvise stoted)

53.32 Postponements of revenue recognition: Current year: Nit (Previous year: Nil)

53.33 Remuneration to non-executive Directors

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Mr. Rajendra M. Malia {independent Director}

1.20

53.34 Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in note 46
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Alf amayns in Bs. in Milliens unless ofherwire stoted)

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.No.109 /22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to Asset Classification as per RBI

MNoarms

As at 11 March 2021

Loss Allowances Difference between
Asset Classification as pevr Asset Classificationas|  Gross Carrying {Provislons) as Net Carrying Amount Provistan required as {0 AS 109 provisions
RBI Norms perind AS 109 Amount as per Ind A5 [reqeired under Ind AS per IRACP narms
109 and {RACP rorms
11} 2 (3) t9) i8}={3)-a) (6} (a6}
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 10,975.43 77.58 10,897.85 45,41 32.17
Stage 2 590.66 16.59 674,07 2.75 13,83
Subtotal for Performing Assets 11,666.09 94.17 11,571.92 48.17 45,00
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 133.79 56.29 7150 12.40 43,89
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 28.55 531 3.24 10.51 14.80
$to 3years Stage 3 - - - - -
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 . - - . -
toss Stage 3 0.86 0.86 - 0.86 0,00
Subtotal for NPA 163.20 B2.46 80.74 23.77 $8.69
Other items such as  guaraniees, fosn Stage %
commitments, ete. which are in the scape of Ind i : " i )
AS 109 but not covered under current Incams Stage 2 . . . . .
Recognition, Asset Clagsification and Provisioning
HRACP) norms Stage 3 . - . -
Subtotal for other ltems - - . . -
Stage 1 10,97%.43 1758 10,897.85 45.41 32,17
Total Stage 2 620,66 16.59 B74.07 2,75 13.83
Stage 3 163.20 82.45 80.74 2737 58,69
Toral 11,6825.29 176.63 11,652.66 71.84 101.69
Asat 31 March 2020
Loss Allowances
Asset Classification as per Asset dassification g Grass Carrying {Provisions) as Net Carrying Amount Provision required ay :;h::r;epl:m::s
RBI Norms per Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind AS |required under Ind AS per IRACP norms
108 and IRACP narms
(1) 2 2 4 15)=131-{4) {8} L4500 (i
{Performing Assets
standard Staga 1 9,580.70 305.59 9.475.11 38.30 £7.29
Stage 2 E15.75 2471 594.04 14,40 0.31
Subtotal for Performing Assets 16.199.45 130.30 $0.065.15 §1L.70 H7.60
Non-Petforming Assets INPAJ
Substandard Stage 3 45.38 18.20 27.16 846 974
Qoubtful - up to 1 year Staged 0.47 0.46 0.01 0.35 0.00
103 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtatal for NPA 45.83 13.66 2717 g.92 3.4
Other  Mems such as  guarantees, loan! Stage L - - - - -
commitments, el¢. which dre in the seope of ind; Stage 2. . . . - -
AS 109 but not covered under current lncome Stage 3 - - - - .
Subtotat for ather items - - - - -
Stage 1 9,580.70 105.59 9,475,511 38.30 &§7.29
Totat Stgg& 2 618.75 24.71 £94.04 24.40 0.3
Stape 3 45.83 18.65 a7 3.92 .14
Tatal 10,245.28 148.86 10,006,32 TLE2 Fila

v
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ADARNI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Al smounts in Rs. in Millions unless otherwise stated)

63 Standards issued but not yet effective
There are neither new standards nor amendments to existing standards which are effective for the annual period beginning from 01
Apri{ 2021.

64 Previous year's information have been regrouped/reciassified wherever necessary to correspond with current period’s
classification/disclosure,

As per our repart of even date

For 5.R. 8atliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of
Chartered Accountanis Adani Capitat Private Limited
ICAF Firm Registration Number: 301003E/£300005 CiN: UB5330GJ2016PTC093692
G.\X""L 2
N\ R AM—
\ / —_ Y
of Jitendra M. Ranawat Mr. %éurav G pta - Mr. Sagar R. Adani
Partner Mp&CcEQ Director
Membership No: 103380 DiN: 01669104 DiN: 07626229

q,) \‘(5\, J “SL r:xlw

- R

fr\t")‘,/
Place: June 18, 2021 N W Viral Shah Mr. Bhavlk Shah
Date; Mumbai . _~TFO Company Secretary
Membership No: AS6979




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
SCHEOULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
Annexure {

{As required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Impertant and Non-Deposit
taking Company {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(Rs. in Lakns)

Amount Amount
Particulars Qutstanding Overdue
Liabilities side
(1} Loans and advances availed by the
non banking financial company inclusive of ingpres: accrued
thereon but not paid:
{3} Debentures : Secured 25,167 .

Unsecyred . .
(orher than failing within the meaning of pubtic deposits)
(b} Deferred Credits . .
{c} Term Loans 72,840 .
{d) Inter-corporate f0ans and borrowings . -
() Commercial Faper . .
() Other Leans {specify nature) . .

Assers side Amount
Outstanding
{2) Break-up of Lgans and Advances including bills
receivables fother than those inciuded in (4) belaw] :
{a) Secured 93259
{b) Unsecured 25034

(3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assats counting towards Asset Finance activities

(i) Lease assets inctuding lzase rentals undef sundry debtors ;

{a) Financial lease -

(b} Operating lease P
(it} Stock on hire inctuding hire charges under sundry debgars:

{3} Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets iy
{iii} okher loans counting towards Asset Flnance activities

{a} Loans where assets have been repossessed -

{b) Loans other than {a} above -

{4) Break-up of investments :
Current tnvestments

1. Quoted :
(i} Shares : {3) Equity -
{b)} Preference
{ii} Debentures and Bonds -
(418} Units of mytual funds
fiv} Government Securities -
(V) Others {piease specify} -




Z. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : {3) Equity -
(b} Preference
{1} Debentures and Bonds
(iif) Units of mutuai funds
{iv} Government Securities -
(v} Ozhers - Pass through cestificates

Particuiars Amount
Qutstanding
Long Term investments :

1. Quoted :

{i) Shares : (3) Equity -
{b} Preference -

{i) Debentures and Bonds -

{ii) Units af mutual funds . "

{iv) Gevernment Securities -

{v) Others {please specify) R

2. Unguoted :

{i) Shares : {a} Equity -
(b} Preference .

{ii} Debentures and Bonds -

{iil}y Units of mutual funds -

{iv) Government Securities -

{v) Others - Pass through certificates -

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2} and (3) above
Piease sep Moke 2 below:
Amount net of pravisions
Category Secured Unsecured Totat

1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - - .
{b) Campanies In the same group - . .
(€} Other related parties - . .

2. Other than related parties 93,259 25034 118,293

Tatai 93,259 25,034 118.293

{6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments
{current and long term) in shares angd securities

{both quoted and unquated):

Please see note 3 betow:

Category Market Value / Book Value
Break up or fair {Met of
value or NAY Provisions}

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries . .
(b) Campanies in the same graup . .
(c) Other relatea parties . .

2. Other than related parties -

Totat i N




{7) Other infarmation
Particulars
{i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties
(b} Other than related parties
(il} Net Non-Pefforming Assers
(3} Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
(i) Assers acquired in satisfaction of debt

Amount

1632

807
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